YAMAHA

FM SOUND GENERATOR GENERATEUR DE SON FM FM SOUNDGENERATOR

FB-01/U

OWNER'S MANUAL MANUEL D'UTILISATION BEDIENUNGSANLEITUNG

	YAMAHA FM SOUND GENERATOR FB-01 #1 3/ 1 Brass	SYSTEM SET UP INST ASSIGN	INST SELECT INST FUNCTION	DATA ENTRY - 1/NO VOICE FUNCTION	DATA ENTRY + 1/YES VOICE SELECT
--	--	------------------------------------	------------------------------------	---	--

Contraction of the second second

... on your purchase of the Yamaha FB-01 FM sound generator. The FB-01 is a 4-operator, 8-algorithm FM tone generator that can produce up to 8 notes simultaneously. The FB-01 may be set to be 8 instruments, each playing monophonically, one instrument with 8-note polyphony, or any combination in-between. Two hundred forty voice memories are provided in ROM (5 banks of 48 voices), and 96 more voice memories are provided in RAM for your own voices. The voice data is compatible with the Yamaha CX5M's SFG-05 sound synthesizer unit, and you can easily create your own sounds by using an external voice programming aid for the FB-01.

The configuration of the entire FB-01 (all settings for each instrument, MIDI channels, voice numbers, etc.) can be stored in Configuration Memory (there are 4 ROM presets and 16 RAM user memories).

The FB-01 features a comprehensive implementation of MIDI (Musical Instrument Digital Interface). It will receive system exclusive event list messages to recognize and produce microtonal intervals or non-standard temperament, as well as many system exclusive messages for loading or saving voice and configuration memories.

How to Use This Manual

This manual is organized to provide all the information necessary for correctly operating the FB-01. By starting with section 3, advanced users can quickly use the FB-01 in a MIDI system without having to review material already familiar to them. Less experienced users, and those wishing a comprehensive look at the FB-01, should begin with section 1.



1.1044

Operating Precautions

Avoid locations exposed to direct sunlight or other sources of heat. Also avoid1. Locationlocations subject to vibration, excessive dust, cold, or moisture.

connecting cables.

Do not attempt to clean the exterior with chemical solvents; this may damage the finish. Clean with a soft, dry cloth.

3. Service and
 Modifications
 Do not open the FB-01 or attempt to make your own repairs or modifications to any part of the instrument. Such actions may not only result in electrical shock or damage, but will also void the product warranty. Refer all servicing to a qualified Yamaha service center.

4. Relocation

2. Cleaning

5. Handling

Avoid applying excessive force to switches and slide controls, dropping, or rough handling. The FB-01 is ruggedly constructed and uses reliable solid-state circuitry, but it should be treated with the same care you would give to any other fine musical instrument.

When moving the instrument be sure to unplug the AC wall plug and all other

6. Electrical Storms (lightning)

surges. Be sure to remove all connecting cables during an electrical storm.

Digital circuitry, such as that used in the FB-01, is sensitive to voltage spikes and

7. Electromagnetic Fields

Digital circuitry is also sensitive to electromagnetic fields such as those produced by television sets, radio receivers, transmitters, etc. The FB-01 should be kept several feet away from any such sources to prevent possible malfunctions.

SUPPLEMENTAL MARKING INFORMATION

Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument Products will have either a label similar to the graphic shown below or a molded/stamped facsimile of the graphic on its enclosure. The explanation of these graphics appears on this page. Please observe all cautions indicated.





The Exclamation point within an equilateral triangle is intended to alert the user to the presence of important operating and maintenance (servicing) instructions in the literature accompanying the product.



The lightning flash with arrowhead symbol, within an equilateral triangle, is intended to alert the user to the presence of uninsulated "dangerous voltage" within the product's enclosure that may be of sufficient magnitude to constitute a risk of electric shock to persons.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

in the fight states and the states and

INTRODUCTION

Congratulations How to Use This Manual Operating Precautions

SECTION 1 SETTING UP THE FB-01

FB-01 Rear Panel View	1
AC Power Requirements and Set Up	1
MIDI Connections	1
Audio Connections	2
Powering Up the FB-01	4
Memory Battery Switch	4
FB-01 Front Panel Display	4
Rack Mounting	4

SECTION 2 GETTING STARTED

Listening to the FB-01 for the First Time	5
How to Follow the Activity Dialog Boxes	5
List of Factory Supplied Voices	7

SECTION 3 OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS

Terms and Conventions Used in	
this Manual	8
Color Grouping of the Front Panel Buttons	8
Front Panel Keys	9
The VOICE SELECT Key	
Selecting Voices	10
Storing Voices to Banks 1 and 2	
(RAM Banks)	10
Selecting a Voice Bank	12
The VOICE FUNCTION Key	
Pitch Bender Range	13
Portamento Time	
POLY and MONO Modes	13
PMD-Pitch Modulation Device	14
The INST ASSIGN and INST SELECT Keys	;
Multi-Timbre/Multi-MIDI Channel	
Capabilities of the FB-01	15
Instrument Select Key	16
MIDI Channel Set Up	
Number of Notes Allocation	16
Lower/Upper Note Limits	17
The INSTRUMENT FUNCTION Key	
Setting the Output Level	19
Octave Transposition	19
Detuning an Instrument	20
Stereo Panning	20
LFO ON/OFF Toggle	21
The SYSTEM SET UP Key	
Configuration Memories	22
Combine Mode	23
Memory Protection	23
Storing a Configuration	24
System Channel Number	24
MIDI Bulk Data Dumps	25
Keycode Number Receive Mode	

SECTION 4 MIDI OPERATIONS	
MIDI Codes Recognized by the FB-01	27
MIDI Data Dumps	
What is a MIDI Bulk Data Dump?	28
Devices Capable of Storing MIDI	
Bulk Data	
Why use a MIDI Bulk Data Dump?	28
Manually Sending Configurations	
and Voices	28
Manually Receiving Configurations	
and Voices	28
VOICING the FB-01	29
SECTION 5 SAMPLE APPLICATIONS	
Factory Supplied Configurations	
Configuration Memory Number 17	30
Configuration Memory Number 18	
Configuration Memory Number 19	
Configuration Memory Number 20	33
Sample MIDI System Set Ups	
Application 1 - KX88 Controller	_
with an FB-01	34
Application 2 - KX88 Controller with an	0-
FB-01 and a QX21 sequencer	35
Application 3 - FB-01 with a CX5M and MIDI Recorder	26
Application 4 - Using the FB-01 with a	30
DX100/DX27 or DX21	37
Application 5 - FB-01 with a DX100 and a	07
QX21 Sequencer	38
Application 6 - Two FB-01s with a KX5	
and a QX21 Sequencer	39
Application 7 - FB-01 with a KX76	
and a QX1 Sequencer	40
Application 8 - FB-01 with a Clavinova	
or PSR-70	41
Application 9 - FB-01 with any	
MIDI keyboard	42
SECTION 6 SPECIFICATIONS	
Hardware	44
MIDI	
MIDI Data Recognized (MIDI IN)	
Standard MIDI Codes	45
System Exclusive MIDI Codes	47

System Exclusive MIDI Codes	47
System Exclusive Event Lists	
System Exclusive Data Format Tables	
Other MIDI Codes	54
MIDI Data Transmitted (MIDI OUT)	54
System Exclusive MIDI Codes	54

APPENDICES

THE REPORT OF A DESCRIPTION OF A A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPT

•••

List of Figures	59
Index	60



)

The MIDI OUT terminal transmits MIDI system exclusive messages from the FB-01 to other MIDI equipment. This is useful for saving voice and configuration memory.

Audio Connections

In order to hear the FB-01, you must connect the unit to some sort of amplification device. Some examples of suitable amplification devices are a stereo mixer/amplifier, a guitar type amplifier, a home stereo or a portable stereo. Here are some examples of audio connections for the FB-01.

FB-01 with a Stereo Mixer or Amplifier

Cable requirements:

Two (2) shielded audio cables with 1/4" phone plugs on one end, and with appropriate connectors on the other end for your stereo mixer/amplifier.



Figure 2: Connecting the FB-01 to a Stereo Mixer or Amplifier

FB-01 with a Guitar Type Amplifier

Cable requirements:

One (1) shielded audio cable with 1/4" phone plug on one end, and with appropriate connector on the other end for your amplifier.

NOTE:___





Figure 3: Connecting the FB-01 to a Guitar Type Amplfier

.

When using the FB-01 with a monophonic amp, two approaches can be taken. One is to use a "Y cable" for combining the L and R outputs of the FB-01 (a slight degradation of the audio signal may occur). The other is to re-program stereo pannings of all instruments to either the L or R output terminal on the FB-01. Both of these methods require only one input channel on the amplifier.

FB-01 with a Home Stereo System

Connecting the FB-01 to a home stereo system allows you to hear the FB-01 in a full-range audio environment without the additional expense of a stereo sound reinforcement system.

Cable requirements:

Two (2) shielded audio cables with 1/4" phone plugs on one end, and with appropriate connectors on the other end for connecting to your home stereo (normally RCA connectors).



Figure 4: Connecting the FB-01 to a Home Stereo System

The choice of AUX, TAPE 1, or TAPE 2 will depend on your own stereo system's configuration and the number of available connectors.

FB-01 with a Portable Stereo System

Connecting the FB-01 to a portable stereo system allows you to hear the FB-01 in a portable audio environment.

Cable requirements:

Two (2) shielded audio cables with 1/4" phone plugs on one end, and with appropriate connectors on the other end for connecting to your portable stereo (normally RCA connectors).



Figure 5: Connecting the FB-01 to a Portable Stereo

Powering Up the FB-01

The FB-01 power switch is located on the rear panel, next to the AC cable. Depressing the side of the switch that has the dot (\bullet) powers the unit ON. The front panel display will read "FB-01 ready $\frac{110}{100}$ " for a few seconds.

NOTE:___

The FB-01 should be turned on AFTER the controlling (transmitting) device is turned on. If the controlling device is turned on after the FB-01, the FB-01 may display "MIDI/error III" on the front panel. This is not serious; depressing any key on the front panel will reset the display. Also note that the FB-01 will continue to sound even while the error message is displayed.

Memory Battery Switch

The FB-01 incorporates a battery-maintained memory source for keeping your custom voices and configuration setups. This battery has a life expectancy of about 5 years and will need to be replaced by your authorized Yamaha service and repair center at that time. To preserve the memory battery, a switch is included to avoid unnecessarily using the battery when it is not needed (such as during extended storage). You should now set the memory battery switch to the ON position. Carefully use a pencil or similar instrument to slide the switch to the right to activate the memory battery.

IMPORTANTIII_

For the FB-01 to store any modifications that you make to either configurations or voices, you MUST set this switch to the ON position.



Figure 6: The FB-01 Memory Battery Switch

FB-01 Front Panel Display

Rack Mounting (Optional) The FB-01 is designed with a special display that is easily viewed from almost any angle above the unit. You should place the unit in your system so that you can easily use the front panel switches while viewing the display.

The FB-01 can be mounted individually, or mounted in pairs by using a special rack mounting kit, available from your authorized Yamaha dealer.



SECTION 2: Getting Started

Listening to the FB-01

If you turned the power on in section 1, continue to the next step. Otherwise, the FB-01 power switch is located on the rear panel, next to the AC cable. Depressing the side of the switch that has the dot (\bullet) powers the unit on. The front panel display will read "FB-01 ready !!!" for a few seconds.

NOTE:_

The FB-01 should be turned on AFTER the controlling (transmitting) device is turned on. If the controlling device is turned on after the FB-01, the FB-01 may display "MIDI/error !!!" on the front panel. This is not serious; depressing any key on the front panel will reset the display. Also note that the FB-01 will continue to sound even while the error message is displayed.

How to Follow the Activity Dialog Boxes

for the First Time

In this owner's manual, each feature of the FB-01 will be described, then you will be given instructions on how to set up and/or use that feature. The instructions are provided in the form of an Activity Dialog Box. The box has three sections. The first falls under the **action** column. In this column you will be instructed which button to press, and for how long. The second area falls under the **display will read** column. This column shows you what the FB-01 front panel display will show when you have successfully completed the instruction given under the action column. Since the FB-01 has a great number of options available to the user, sometimes a value that is displayed in your FB-01 will differ from that which is shown in the manual. This is okay as long as the difference occurs in the area of the display that is shown as shaded in the manual. In order to correctly follow the manual, it is suggested that you use the DATA ENTRY keys to set the value equal to that shown in the manual. The third column, which is the **explanation** column, provides a brief explanation of what you have just accomplished.

Select A Configuration Memory

To listen to the voices of the FB-01 we will use one of the Configuration Memories that is supplied in the unit's ROM memory (a detailed description of the Configuration Memory appears later in the manual). This configuration will allow you to play up to 8 notes of the same voice.

action	display will read	explanation			
press SYSTEM SETUP Until	#1 [1] user 1	selects configuration memory #1			
DATA ENTRY + 1/YES until	#1 [17] single	selects configuration memory #17			

To select Configuration Memory number 17, do the following:

Make sure that the transmitting keyboard is transmitting on MIDI channel 1.

To Select Different Voices



To Select a Different Bank of Voices



You may now select any one of the 48 voices in the new bank you have chosen in the same way as described above (press VOICE SELECT once, then use the +1 or -1 keys).

Try playing all the voices in the FB-01. Use the following voice chart as a guide. Note that banks 1 and 2 (the RAM banks) are set at the factory to be equal to bank 3.

List of Factory Supplied Voices

an a shi i

5

11 Brass 01 UpPiano 01 Horn2 01 FrikSyn3 02 JOrgan1 02 Horn 02 Spiano 02 Horn3 02 FrikSyn3 03 JOrgan1 04 LoStrig 04 Piano3 04 Flugeth 04 SynFeed 04 COrgan1 05 Srinings 06 Piano5 06 Trumpt2 05 SynFeed 04 COrgan1 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan4 07 SynFeed 08 EOrgan4 07 EOrgan4 11 HardBr4 12 MonoSyn 12 MidPipe 12 EOrgan4 13 Hufftss 13 Corgan5 SynEdd 14 SynBai4 14 SynEdd <t< th=""><th>RC</th><th>M1 (BANK</th><th>3)</th><th>RC</th><th>M2 (BANK</th><th>4)</th><th>RC</th><th>M3 (BANK</th><th>5)</th><th>RC</th><th>M4 (BANK</th><th>6)</th><th>RC</th><th>M5 (BANK</th><th>(7)</th></t<>	RC	M1 (BANK	3)	RC	M2 (BANK	4)	RC	M3 (BANK	5)	RC	M4 (BANK	6)	RC	M5 (BANK	(7)
03 Trumpet 03 Piano2 03 Horns 03 SynOrgn 03 COrgan1 04 LoStrig 04 Piano3 04 Flugelh 04 SynFeed 05 COrgan1 05 Strings 06 Piano5 06 Furmbon 06 SynFeed 06 EOrgan4 07 NewEP 07 PhGrand 08 Grand 08 Grand 08 Grand 08 Hufftak 10 Huffak 10 Huffak 10 Huffak 12 Grand 09 Jazz Gt 09 Dorgan8 11 HardBr4 12 MonoSyn 13 BigPipe 14 Honkey1 13 Huffak 12 SynPiku 14 SynPiku 15 Organ8 15 Porgan1 12 EGrand2 12 HardBr4 12 MonoSyn 13 BigPipe 14 Porgan1 14 Honkey2 17 String1	01	Brass		01	UpPiano		.01	Horn2		01	FnkSyn2		01	JOrgan1	
03 Trumpet 03 Piano2 04 Hors 03 SynOrgn 03 COrgan1 04 LoStrig 04 Piano3 04 Flugeih 04 SynOrgn 03 COrgan1 05 Strings 05 Piano4 06 Piano5 06 Firumpt2 06 SynClar 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan3 06 EOrgan3 07 EOrgan3 08 Scheavy 08 EOrgan3 08 EOrgan4 11	02	Horn		02	Spiano		02	Horn3		02	FnkSyn3		02	JOrgan2	
04 LoStrig 04 Plano3 04 Flugeln 04 SynFeed 05 SynClar 06 Corgan2 05 Strings 06 Plano3 06 Finno4 05 Trombon 05 SynClar 05 Eorgan3 05 Eorgan5 05 Eorgan6 09 Eorgan6 09 Eorgan6 09 Eorgan6 09 Eorgan6 09 Eorgan7 10 HardBr1 10 HardBr2 11 HardBr3 11 Schwohn 12 MidPipe 13 Eorgan2 13 Honkey1 13 HufBr4 12 MonoSyn 12 MidPipe 15 Porgan2 15 Probai 16 String2 17 RuBass 17 Folk Gt Gitar4 16 Gutar 16 Futee 17 NewEP3 <td< td=""><td>03</td><td>Trumpet</td><td></td><td>03</td><td>Piano2</td><td></td><td>03</td><td>Horns</td><td></td><td>. 03</td><td>SynOrgn</td><td></td><td>03</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	03	Trumpet		03	Piano2		03	Horns		. 03	SynOrgn		03		
06 Strings 06 Piano4 06 Piano4 06 Trombon 06 SynHarm 06 Eorgan3 06 Piano 06 Piano4 06 Piano4 07 SynClar 06 Eorgan3 06 Eorgan4 09 Jazz Gt 08 Grand 09 HardBr1 09 SoHasy 07 Synclar 08 Eorgan4 11 WodBass 11 LPiano1 10 HardBr2 11 SoHasy 11 SoHasy 11 SoHasy 11 SoHasy 11 SoHasy 11 Songan7 10 HardBr2 11 HardBr2 11 HardBr2 11 HardBr2 11 HardBr2 11 Sompoh 12 MidPipe 14 Porgan2 13 Honkey2 14 PoreBr2 15 SynPiuk 16 Guiar 15 Porgan2 18 NewEP3 18 String1 16 Ebasa3 16	04	LoStrig		04	Piano3		04	Flugelh		04	SynFeed		04	-	
06 Piano 06 Pianos 06 Framp12 06 SynClar 06 Eorgan4 07 NewEP 07 PhGrand 08 Brass2 7 Brass2 08 SynClar 07 SynLead 07 SynLead 07 SynLead 07 SynLead 07 SynLead 08 Huffrak 66 Eorgan5 08 Eorgan5 08 Huffrak 69 Eorgan7 10 Eorgan7 10 HardBr1 10 HardBr2 10 HardBr3 11 Schnooh 12 MidPipe 13 Eorgan1 12 Forgan1 13 Huffrah 15 Forgan1 12 Forgan1 12	05	Strings		05	Piano4		05	Trombon		05				-	
07 NewEP 07 PhGrand 07 Brass 07 SynLead 39 07 EOrgan5 08 GGrand 08 Grand 08 Brass 07 Verticity 08 Brass 08 Brass 08 Brass 09 SynLead 39 OP Corgan6 08 Brass 09 SynLead 39 OP Corgan6 09 SynLead 39 OP Corgan6 09 SynLead 39 OP Corgan6 OP Forgan5 To EOrgan6 To EOrgan7 To EOrgan6 To EOrgan7 To EOrgan7 To EOrgan6 To EOrgan6 To EOrgan6 To EOrgan6 EOrgan6 To </td <td>06</td> <td>Piano</td> <td></td> <td>06</td> <td>Piano5</td> <td></td> <td>06</td> <td>Trumpt2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>· ·</td> <td></td> <td>1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1</td> <td>3</td> <td></td>	06	Piano		06	Piano5		06	Trumpt2			· ·		1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1	3	
10 EBass 10 LPiano1 10 HardBr2 10 Hollow 10 Corgan8 11 WodBass 11 LPiano2 11 HardBr3 11 Schmooh 11 MidPipe 16 Schmooh 11 Schmooh Schmooh Schmooh<	07	NewEP		07	PhGrand		07					zer		-	
10 EBass 10 LPiano1 10 HardBr2 10 Hollow 10 Corgan8 11 WodBass 11 LPiano2 11 HardBr3 11 Schmooh 11 MidPipe 16 Schmooh 11 Schmooh Schmooh Schmooh<	08	EGrand	ļ	08	Grand	P	-08 3	Brass3	ass			hes		1 -	Organ
10 EBass 10 LPiano1 10 HardBr2 10 Hollow 10 Corgan8 11 WodBass 11 LPiano2 11 HardBr3 11 Schmooh 11 MidPipe 16 Schmooh 11 Schmooh Schmooh Schmooh<	09	Jazz Gt		09	DpGrand	Piar	09	HardBr1	8	1.		ynt	1 A	-	0
11 WodBass 11 LPiano2 11 HardBr3 11 Schmooh 11 SmPipe 12 EOrgan1 ag 13 Honkey1 13 Hufflers 13 Cheeky 13 BipPipe 14 POrgan2 ag 14 Honkey1 13 Hufflers 13 Cheeky 14 String1 14 String2 15 SynPluk 16 Guard 16 Flute bg 17 NewEP2 18 String1 16 EBass3 16 Guard Guard 17 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 18 PuckGt 19 Clarine 19 NewEP5 20 SolOVio 20 UprBas 12 Elifett 22 Elifett 22 Fielst 21 Elifett 22 Fielst 22 Fielst 22 Fielst 23 Banjo 24 String2 Sislovio 20 NowEs	10	EBass		10	LPiano1		10	HardBr2		10		S I	10	-	
12 EOrgan1 12 EGrand2 12 HardBr4 12 MonoSyn 12 MidPipe 13 EOrgan2 a Ta Honkey1 13 HuffBrs 13 Cheeky 13 BipPipe 14 POrgan1 a Honkey1 14 PercBr1 14 SynBeil 14 SynPluk 15 Grean 15 Porgan2 a Honkey2 14 PercBr2 15 SynPluk 16 Guitar 17 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 17 Folk Gt 18 Oboe 18 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 19 BirteGt 20 Glocken 20 NewEP4 19 String3 18 SolBass 19 BirteGt 23 Koto 23 EPiano1 21 RichS14 g SynBas1 22 Lute 24 EPiano5 25 Cello2 g SynBas5 28 Harp2 Strin2 SynBas5 28 Ha	11	WodBass		11	LPiano2		11	HardBr3							
13 EOrgan2 ag 13 Honkey1 13 HuffBrs 13 Cheeky 13 BigPipe 14 POrgan1 14 Honkey2 14 PorcBr1 14 SynPluk 15 SynPluk 15 SynPluk 15 Organ 15 Porgan2 15 Pytbe 16 String1 16 EBass3 16 Guitar 17 Picolo 18 NewEP3 18 String2 17 RubBass 18 Porgan1 10 Claine 19 NewEP4 19 String4 19 PluckBas 19 PluckGt 11 NewEP5 20 SoloVio 20 UprBass 20 Fuzz Gt 12 Vibes 21 EPiano3 22 RichSt3 23 RichSt3 24 SynBas2 25 Harp2 23 Koto 23 EPiano3 24 SynBas5 28 Harp3 24 SynBas5 28 Harp2 24 Harpsic 26 HighTin 27 LoSt	12	EOrgan1		12	EGrand2		12	HardBr4		12				1	
14 POrgan1 14 Porgan2 14 PorcBr1 14 SynPluk 14 SynPluk 15 Organ 16 Flute 15 Proble 16 String1 16 SynPluk 15 SynPluk 16 Organ 17 Picolo 15 Pribe 16 String1 16 EBass3 16 Guitar 19 Clarine 19 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 18 PlukBas 19 PlukGt 20 Glocken 20 NewEP5 20 Solovio 20 UprtBas 22 Flike1 21 EPiano1 21 RichSt1 21 Fretes 21 Zither2 23 RichSt4 25 Cello1 25 SynBas2 25 Harp2 24 SthPas 27 LoStrg4 28 SynBas3 26 Harp3 25 SindSyn 30 EPStrg 30 <td>13</td> <td>EOrgan2</td> <td>e</td> <td>-13 ⁻</td> <td>Honkey1</td> <td></td> <td>13</td> <td>HuffBrs</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>· ·</td> <td></td>	13	EOrgan2	e	-13 ⁻	Honkey1		13	HuffBrs						· ·	
10 10 <th10< th=""> 10 10 <th1< td=""><td>14</td><td>POrgan1</td><td>atib</td><td>14</td><td>Honkey2</td><td></td><td>14</td><td>PercBr1</td><td></td><td>14</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th1<></th10<>	14	POrgan1	atib	14	Honkey2		14	PercBr1		14					
10 10 <th10< th=""> 10 10 <th1< td=""><td>15</td><td>POrgan2</td><td>du</td><td>15</td><td>Pfbell</td><td></td><td>15</td><td>PercBr2</td><td></td><td>.15</td><td></td><td></td><td>1.1</td><td></td><td></td></th1<></th10<>	15	POrgan2	du	15	Pfbell		15	PercBr2		.15			1.1		
17 Picolo 17 NewEP2 17 String2 17 RubBass 17 Folk Gt 18 Oboe 19 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 19 PlukBas 19 BrickGt 20 Glocken 20 NewEP5 20 SolVio 20 UprBas 20 Fretes 21 Zither Zither 22 EPiano3 23 RichSt3 23 SynBas1 22 Banjo 24 Zither 25 EPiano5 25 Cello1 25 SynBas3 26 Harp3 25 Clav 25 Feliano5 25 Cello1 26 SynBas3 26 Harp3 27 Bells 27 HardTin 28 LoStrg4 28 SynBas5 28 HitKoto 29 SmadSyn 30 EPStrng 30 Orchest 30 SynBas6 29 SynBas6 29 SynBas6 29 SynArbas6 29 SynBas6 29 SynArbas6 29 SynArbas6 29	16	Flute	3	16	PfVibe		16	String1							+
18 Oboe 18 NewEP3 18 String3 18 SolBass 18 PluckGt 19 Clarine 20 Glocken 20 NewEP4 20 SolVio 20 SolBass 19 PlukBas 20 FileGt 20 Glocken 20 NewEP4 21 RichSt1 21 Fretes 20 Fuzz Gt 22 Xylophn 22 EPiano1 21 RichSt1 22 FlapBs 22 Lute 23 Koto 23 EPiano5 24 RichSt4 7 24 SynBas1 25 Harp2 26 Harpsic 26 HighTin 27 LoStrg3 27 SynBas5 28 SynBas6 29 Sitar1 30 Aramoni 30 EPStrng 30 Orchest 31 Marimb3 32 Faratay 31 Strof2 33 Clav2 32 Pizzic1 32 Marimb3 32<	17	Picolo	SFG	17	NewEP2		17	-						1	
19 Clarine 19 NewEP4 19 String4 19 PlukBas 19 BriteGt 20 Glocken 20 NewEP5 21 RichSt1 20 UprtBas 20 UprtBas 21 FuzteGt 22 Xylophn 22 EPiano3 92 RichSt3 22 RichSt3 23 MonoBas 86 23 BriteGt 24 Zither 24 EPiano3 92 23 RichSt3 24 SynBas2 25 Harp3 24 SynBas3 26 Harp2 25 Cello1 86 SynBas4 27 StrKtoto 28 Harp 28 PerCPf 28 LoStrg4 28 SynBas5 28 HitKoto 29 SmadSyn 29 WoodPf 29 LoStrg4 20 SynBas5 28 HitKoto 21 EPBrass 31 Sth Str 31 SynOvic 32 Fartasy 33 LoStrg2 33 Clav2 33 Filte2 35 Viba3 35	18	Oboe			NewEP3			-							
20 Glocken 20 NewEP5 20 SoloVio 20 UptBas 20 Fuzz Gt 21 Vibas 21 EPiano1 22 RichSt1 22 FietBas 22 Lither 23 Koto 23 EPiano3 epiano3 epiano4 22 RichSt1 22 FietBas 23 Banjo 24 Zither 24 EPiano4 24 RichSt4 23 MonoBas epias3 26 Harp2 26 Harpsic 26 HighTin epias4 Zit Gt 24 SynBas1 23 Banjo 27 Beils 27 HardTin 28 CoStrg3 27 SynBas4 27 SitKoto 29 SmadSyn 29 WoodPf 29 LoStrg5 29 SynBas6 28 SynBas7 30 Sitar2 31 SteelDr 31 EPBrass 31 Sth Str 33 SynCiv3 34 Flute2	19	Clarine		19	NewEP4			-			PlukBas				
21Vibes21EPiano122EPiano122EPiano222RichSt121Fretles21Zither222Koto23EPiano3epi23RichSt222FlapBs23MonoBas23Banjo24Zither24EPiano4epi24EPiano524RichSt324SynBas125SynBas225Harp226Harpsic26HighTin27LoStrg327SynBas226Harp327Bells27HardTin28PerCPf28LoStrg428SynBas528HitKoto29SmadSyn30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas629Sitar131SteelDr31EPBrass31Sth Str31Marimb231HuffSyn32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav436Flute335VSAR35VSAR36zingPlp36MuteClv36Flute436Glockn236WidWar39FunkSyn39SynClv193Sth Flt38SlowFlt38Vibe335VSAR37Matal37MuteCl237Pan Flt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SnareDr41Spac1 <td>20</td> <td>Glocken</td> <td> </td> <td>20</td> <td>NewEP5</td> <td></td> <td>20</td> <td></td> <td>}</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	20	Glocken		20	NewEP5		20		}						
22Xylophn22EPiano222RichSt223FlapBs22Lute23Koto23EPiano3924RichSt324SynBas12524SynBas225SynBas225Harp226Harpsic26HighTin926Cello227SynBas326Harp225Harp228Harp28PerCPf28LoStrg327SynBas528HitKoto29SmadSyn29WoodPf29LoStrg320SynBas629Sitar130EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas629Sitar231SteelDr32Clav233Clav333Pizzic133Xyloph233Synwoic34Horn Lo34Clav233Clav333Siter133Synwoic33Synwoic35Whistle35FuzzClv36Flute436Glockn236Racing37Metal37MuteClv38SlowFlit39Bells 237WidWar39FunKSyn40SynClv1941Bassoon43Harmon344SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTimp44SynTi	21	Vibes		21	EPiano1		21				-				
23 Koto 23 EPiano3 9 23 RichSt3 24 SynBas1 24 SynBas1 24 SynBas2 24 SynBas2 25 SynBas2 26 Harpsic 26 HighTin 27 Bells 27 Harpsic 26 HighTin 27 LoStrg3 27 SynBas3 26 Harp3 27 Bells 27 HardTin 27 LoStrg3 27 SynBas3 26 Harp3 29 SmadSyn 29 WoodPf 29 LoStrg4 28 SynBas5 28 HitKoto 29 SmadSyn 30 EPStrng 30 Orchest 30 SynBas7 30 Sitar1 30 EPStrng 31 5th Str 31 Marimb3 32 Fantasy 33 LoStrg4 33 Clav3 33 Synvoic 33 Synvoic 34 Morobas 35 Vibe2 34 Movoice 34 Movoice	22	Xylophn		22			22								
24 Zither 24 EPiano5 25 Cello1 25 SynBas1 24 SytHarp 25 Clav 25 EPiano5 25 Cello1 25 SynBas2 25 Harp2 26 Harpsic 26 HighTin 26 Cello2 26 SynBas3 26 Harp3 27 Bells 27 HardTin 27 LoStrg3 27 SynBas4 27 Strktoto 29 SmadSyn 29 WoodPf 29 LoStrg5 29 SynBas6 29 Sitar1 30 Harmoni 30 EPStrng 30 Orchest 30 SynBas7 30 Sitar2 31 SteelDr 31 EPBrass 31 SthStr 31 Marimb3 32 Fantasy 32 Clav4 35 Flute2 33 Xyloph2 33 SynVoic 34 Horn Lo 36 MuteClv 36 Flute3 36 Glockn2 36 Racing 37 Metal 37 Mute	23					e						ass	- H		Plucked
27Bells27HardTin27LoStrg327SynBas427SftKoto28Harp28PerCPf28LoStrg428SynBas528HitKoto29SmadSyn30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas629Sitar130Harmoni30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas730Sitar231SteelDr31EPBrass315th Str31Marimb332Fantasy32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35Fuzzlv35Flute336Glockn236Racing37Metal37MuteClv36Flute436Glockn236Racing38Heavy38SynClv139Sth Flt39Sth Flt39Shostie40Voicessn40SynClv25640Move41Space 142EBass2642Harpsi343Harmon344SpChime43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi345Harmon344SynClv443SpTalk45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust<	24	Zither		24	EPiano4	Pia						ä		·	Pluce
27Bells27HardTin27LoStrg327SynBas427SftKoto28Harp28PerCPf28LoStrg428SynBas528HitKoto29SmadSyn30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas629Sitar130Harmoni30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas730Sitar231SteelDr31EPBrass315th Str31Marimb332Fantasy32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35Fuzzlv35Flute336Glockn236Racing37Metal37MuteClv36Flute436Glockn236Racing38Heavy38SynClv139Sth Flt39Sth Flt39Shostie40Voicessn40SynClv25640Move41Space 142EBass2642Harpsi343Harmon344SpChime43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi345Harmon344SynClv443SpTalk45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust<	25	Clav		25		tric			sĝu						
27Bells27HardTin27LoStrg327SynBas427SftKoto28Harp28PerCPf28LoStrg428SynBas528HitKoto29SmadSyn30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas629Sitar130Harmoni30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas730Sitar231SteelDr31EPBrass315th Str31Marimb332Fantasy32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35Fuzzlv35Flute336Glockn236Racing37Metal37MuteClv36Flute436Glockn236Racing38Heavy38SynClv139Sth Flt39Sth Flt39Shostie40Voicessn40SynClv25640Move41Space 142EBass2642Harpsi343Harmon344SpChime43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi345Harmon344SynClv443SpTalk45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust<	26	Harpsic		26	HighTin	lec		1	Stri	N N				-	
28Harp 2928PercPf 2928LoStrg4 2928SynBas5 2928HitKoto29SmadSyn 30Harmoni 30EPStrng30Orchest 3130Orchest 3230SynBas5 3029Sitar1 30Sitar231SteelDr 3231EPBrass315th Str 3232Clav2 3332Clav2 3332Pizzic1 3332Amimb3 3232Fantasy 33Synvoic34Horn Lo 3434Clav434Flute2 3533Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo 35Spruzclv35Flute3 35Spruzcl36Glockn2 3535Vibe3 3535VSAR 3636zingPlp 3636MuteClv 3736Flute4 3836Glockn2 3736Racing 3737Water 383839FunkSyn 39SynClv1 39SynClv238SlowFit 3938SlowFit 3938SlowFit 3938SlowFit 3938SlowFit 3938SlowFit 4138TubeBe1 3937Water 3938WidWar 3941Marimba 42EBass240SynClv4 4441Bassoon 43SpTalk41Space 1 4242SpChime 4343Harmon243HandDr 4444SynTimp44Winds43SnareDr 4345Harpsi5<	27			.27	-			1		1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C					
29SmadSyn Harmoni29WoodPf29LoStrg529SynBas629Sitar130Harmoni30EPStrng30Orchest30SynBas730Sitar231SteelDr31EPBrass315th Str31Marimb231HuffSyn32Timpani32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35FuzClv35Flute335Vibe335VSAR36zingPlp36MuteClv36Flute436Glockn236Racing39FunkSyn39SynClv239Sth Flt39Bells 239Sd NidWar40VoicessnareDr41SynClv4snareDr43Harmon243Harmon243HardDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi345Harmon445Clock45Smash46Alarm44Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom46Circust46MonSax46Heifer46Alarm45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247 <td>28</td> <td>Harp</td> <td></td>	28	Harp													
30Harmoni 3130EPStrng 3130Orchest 3130SynBas730Sitar231SteelDr 3231EPBrass315th Str31Marimb231All HuffSyn32Timpani 32Clav233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo 3534Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice36zingPlp 3636MuteClv36Flute435Vibe335VSAR38Heavy 3939SynClv1prove 3938SlowFlt38SlowFlt38TubeBe137Water40Voices 41SynClv2go 4241Bassoon 4539SptClv2go 4344Harmon243Harmon243Harmon243HardDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock45Smash46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop		SmadSyn													
31SteelDr Timpani31EPBrass315th Str31Marimb231HuffSyn32Timpani32Clav233Str2233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute233Xyloph233Synvoic36zingPlp36MuteClv35Flute336Glockn236Glockn236Racing37Metal37MuteCl238SlowFlt36Glockn237Water38SlowFlt38Heavy39SynClv139SynClv239Sth Flt39Bells 239Ghostie40Voices40SynClv339Sth Flt39Bells 239Ghostie41Marimba41SynClv439Sth Flt39Bells 239Ghostie41Marimba41SynClv439Harpsi341Bassoon41SteelDr41Space 142EBass244Harpsi344Harmon344Harmon344SynTimp43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock46Harm45Tom Tom46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Heilcop	30			30	EPStrng										
32Timpani (32)32Clav2 (33)33Clav3 (34)33Pizzic1 (34)32Marimb3 (32)33Synvoic34Horn Lo (35)34Clav434Flute2 (35)33Synvoic34M.Voice35Whistle (36)35FuzClv (36)35Flute3 (37)36Flute3 (36)36Glockn2 (37)36Glockn2 (37)37Pan Flt (37)38Synvoic36Racing37Metal (37)37MuteCl2 (38)37Pan Flt (39)38SlowFlt (39)38SinwFlt (39)38WildWar39FunkSyn (40)39SynClv2 (40)39Sth Flt (41)39Bells 2 (40)39Ghostie (40)41Marimba (41)41SynClv4 (42)14Bassoon (42)41SteelDr (42)41Space 1 (42)42EBass2 (43)44Harpsi344Harmon243HandDr (43)43SpTalk (44)44RD Cymb (45)45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock45Smash (46)45Tom Tom (46)46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer (46)46Alarm (47)47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	31	SteelDr													
33LoStrg233Clav333Pizzic233Xyloph233Synvoic34Horn Lo34Clav434Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35FuzzClv35Flute336Glockn236Glockn237SynVoic37Metal37MuteCl237Pan Flt38SlowFlt38TubeBe137Water39FunkSyn39SynClv239Sth Flt39Sth Flt39Bells 239Ghostie40Voices40SynClv341SynClv441Bassoon41SteelDr41Space 142EBass240SynClv443Harpsi344Harpsi444Harmon343HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi546Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Heilcop	32	Timpani			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									-	
34Horn Lo34Clav435Flute234Vibe234M.Voice35Whistle35FuzClv35Flute335Vibe335Vibe335VSAR36zingPip36MuteClv37MuteCl236Flute436Glockn236Racing38Heavy38SynClv139SynClv239Sth Flt38SlowFlt38TubeBe137Water39FunkSyn39SynClv239Sth Flt39Sells 239Sells 239Shotie40Voices39SynClv339Sth Flt39Sells 239Ghostie41Marimba41SynClv441Bassoon41SteelDr41Space 142EBass242Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash45Tom Tom45Harpsi546MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Heilcop	33	1 .			1										
35Whistle zingPip35FuzzClv MuteClv35Flute3 3635Vibe3 3635VSAR 3636zingPip 3736MuteClv 3736Flute4 3736Glockn2 3736Glockn2 3736Racing 3738Heavy 3938SynClv1 3939SynClv2 3939Sth Flt 3938SlowFlt 3938SlowFlt 3938SlowFlt 3938SlowFlt 3939Sch Flute3 3738MuteCl2 3738SlowFlt 3939Sch Flute3 3739Sch Flute3 3738TubeBe1 3936Racing 37Water39FunkSyn 4039SynClv239Sth Flt 4039Bells 25040Wave41Marimba 41SynClv339Sth Flt 4239Bells 25040Wave41SynClv434Harpsi241Bassoon3642ElectDr41Space 142EBass243Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	1		/												
36zingPlp36MuteClv37Matel36Flute43736Glockn23736Racing38Heavy38SynClv138SlowFlt38SlowFlt38TubeBe13838WildWar39FunkSyn39SynClv2395th Flt39Sth Flt39Bells 23939Ghostie40Voices40SynClv441Bassoon5041SteelDr41Space 142EBass242Harpsi243Harmon243HandDr43HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445Clock46SynTimp46Alarm45Tom Tom46Circust47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	35	1	V	35	1					÷.,					
37Metal37MuteCl238SynClv138SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt38SlowFlt39Bells 239Bells 239Ghostie40Voices39SynClv2395th Flt39Bells 240Voices39Ghostie41Marimba41SynClv441Bassoon7041SteelDr41Space 142EBass242Harpsi24042Reed43Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Heilcop	36				1										
38Heavy 3938SynClv1 3938SlowFit 3938TubeBe2 395838WildWar39FunkSyn 4039SynClv2395th Fit 4039Bells 23939Ghostie40Voices 41Marimba 41SynClv3395th Fit 400boe239Bells 23940Wave41Marimba 42EBass241SynClv434Harpsi241Bassoon41SteelDr41Space 143SnareDr43Harpsi344Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Heilcop	37	Metal												-	
39FunkSyn 4039SynClv2Voices 4039SynClv2Voices 4039Sth Flt 4039Bells 2Voices 4039Ghostie41Marimba40SynClv340Oboe2Voices 4140TempleG40Wave41Marimba41SynClv4Voices 4241BassoonVoices 4241SteelDr41Space 142EBass242Harpsi243Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk43SnareDr44Harpsi344Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	38	Heavy			SynClv1	_						~			ect
42EBass2 $\stackrel{6}{{}}$ 42Harpsi2 $\stackrel{6}{{}{}$ 42Reed $\stackrel{8}{{{}}$ 42ElectDr42Space 143SnareDr43Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi444Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	39	FunkSyn			SynClv2	oarc						sior			effe
42EBass2 $\stackrel{6}{{}}$ 42Harpsi2 $\stackrel{6}{{}{}$ 42Reed $\stackrel{8}{{{}}$ 42ElectDr42Space 143SnareDr43Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi444Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	40	Voices	ŝ			eyb.			ind			cus			Sound effect
43SnareDr43Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi444Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	41	Marimba	Jibu			Ъ	41		Å			Pei			Sol
43SnareDr43Harpsi343Harmon243HandDr43SpTalk44RD Cymb44Harpsi444Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	42		JmC			Ωthε			Nov						
44RD Cymb44Harpsi444Harmon344SynTimp44Winds45Tom Tom45Harpsi545Harmon445clock45Smash46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop		SnareDr					1		[-]						
45 Tom Tom 45 Harpsi5 45 Harmon4 45 clock 45 Smash 46 Mars to 46 Circust 46 MonoSax 46 Heifer 46 Alarm 47 Storm 47 Celeste 47 Sax 1 47 SnareD2 47 Helicop	1														
46Mars to46Circust46MonoSax46Heifer46Alarm47Storm47Celeste47Sax 147SnareD247Helicop	45	1									-				
47 Storm 47 Celeste 47 Sax 1 47 SnareD2 47 Helicop										1					
	47														
48 WINDDEI 48 Squeeze 48 Sax 2 48 SnareD3 48 SineWav	48	Windbel		48	Squeeze		48	Sax 2		48	SnareD3		48	SineWav	

.****

SECTION 3: Operating Instructions

Terms and Conventions Used in This Manual

Certain terms will be used throughout the manual. This is a short description of each term. A more detailed description will appear later in this section.

Definition of Terms

VOICE	a tone color — sometimes called a "patch" or "program"	
BANK	a group of 48 voices	
INSTRUMENT	a grouping of several notes (up to 8) of one voice	
CONFIGURATION	a preset grouping of instruments	

Figure 7: Definition of Terms

When using this manual, it is assumed that configuration #17 is active. This is to give all readers a common reference point when following the manual instructions.

To set the FB-01 on configuration #17, follow the instructions of page 5 "Select a Configuration Memory".

The front panel of the FB-01 is organized into groups of functions, which are noted by the color code bar above each key.

Color	Ke	ys	Purpose	
Green	SYSTEM SETUP	INST SELECT	Global Menu Keys	
White	DATA ENTRY - 1/NO	DATA ENTRY + 1/YES	Data Entry/Modify Keys	
Blue			instrument Menu Keys	
S Blue		VOICE SELECT	Voice Menu Keys	

1

Color Grouping of the Front Panel Buttons

Although the front panel of the FB-01 has only eight (8) keys, many functions Front Panel Keys and parameters are available by pressing the same key several times. FRONT PANEL KEY CHART \bigcirc 2 3 (1 SYSTEM INST DATA ENTRY DATA ENTRY + 1/YES YAMAHA FM SOUND GENERATOR FB-01 SET UP SELECT 1/NO "FB-01 ready 111" INST INST VOICE VOICE ASSIGN FUNCTION SELECT (5) **(6**) (7) 8 Figure 8: Front Panel Key Chart w/FB-01Front Panel SYSTEM 1INSTRUMENT (2)③ DATA (4) DATA SET UP SELECT ENTRY/-1/NO ENTRY/+1/YES **Configuration Select** increments Instrument **Decrements Value** Increments Value Number Combine ON/OFF Memory Protect **Configuration Store** Tuning System Channel Number Dump Key-code Number **Receive Mode** (5) INST 6 INST ⑦ VOICE (8) VOICE ASSIGN FUNCTION FUNCTION SELECT MIDI Channel Number Output Level **Pitchbender Range** Voice Number Number of Notes Octave Transpose Portamento Time Voice Store Key-code Number limit/L Detune Mono/Poly Voice Bank Number Key-code Number limit/H Stereo Controller for PMD LFO Enable

in.





Figure 9: Voice Select Key View

Selecting Voices

To select a voice, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
VOICE SELECT	#1 3/ 1 Brass 1	current voice name and number is displayed
press DATA ENTRY 1/NO or as desired NOTE:	#1 3/ 2 Horn	new voice name and number is displayed
When voice number 1 voice number 48 to be	is displayed; choosing the n	a "wrap around" of voice number. ext lower voice number causes er 48 is displayed, choosing the to be displayed.

Storing Voices to Banks 1 and 2 (RAM Banks)

- Before storing a voice, make sure that MEMORY PROTECT is OFF (described in The SYSTEM SET UP Key heading, page 22).
- Select the voice you wish to store from any of the seven (7) voice banks (see "Selecting Voices" above).

* Select the memory number where you wish to store the voice:

#1 Voice/stor 1	
	store voice mode is selected
#1 Voice/stor 96	until desired voice number is displayed
	#1 Voice/stor 96

★ Verify and store the voice:



Press a key to return to the last function selected.

NOTE:_

When storing voices to the RAM banks, a different voice numbering scheme is used. The two banks of 48 voices are numbered together as voices 1 through 96. This method is only used while storing voices. Voice numbers 1 through 48 refer to Bank 1, Voices 1 through 48. Voice numbers 49 through 96 refer to Bank 2, Voices 1 through 48. Equivalent voice numbers are listed below.

RAM V	oice N	umbers
-------	--------	--------

Store E	Bank A	Store E	Bank A	Store B	lank B	Store I	Bank B
1	1	25	25	49	1	73	25
2	2	26	26	50	2	74	26
3	3	27	27	51	3	75	27
4	4	28	28	52	4	76	28
5	5	29	29	53	5	77	29
6	6	30	30	54	6	78	30
7	7	31	31	55	7	7 9	31
8	8	32	32	56	8	80	32
9	9	33	33	57	9	81	33
10	10	34	34	58	10	82	34
11	11	35	35	59	11	83	35
12	12	36	36	60	12	84	36
13	13	37	37	61	13	85	37
14	14	38	38	62	14	86	38
15	15	39	39	63	15	87	39
16	16	40	40	64	16	88	40
17	17	41	41	65	17	89	41
18	18	42	42	66	18	90	42
19	19	43	43	67	19	91	43
20	20	44	44	68	20	92	44
21	21	45	45	69	21	93	45
22	22	46	46	70	22	94	46
23	23	47	47	71	23	95	47
24	24	48	48	72	24	96	48

Selecting a Voice Bank

To select a voice bank, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press VOICE SELECT until	#1 Voice bank 3	current bank number is dis- played
DATA ENTRY - 1/NO as desired	#1 Voice bank ,2	new bank number is displayed



Figure 10: Voice Function Key View

Pitch Bender Range

The pitch bender range is programmable in increments of semitones (half-steps) for each voice. The effect is variable from no effect at all to a range of one full octave up or down. A value of 0 (zero) has no effect, a value of 2 has a range of 1 full step, a value of 3 has a range of a minor 3rd, and a value of 12 has a range of a full octave.

To set the pitch bender range value, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
UNCE FUNCTION Until	#1 Bender 2	current bender range is dis- played
DATA ENTRY - 1/NO as desired	#1 Bender 1-	new bender range is displayed

Portamento Time

Portamento is described as a gradual gliding movement in pitch from one note to another. The amount of time to slide from one note to the next is called portamento time.

Portamento time is programmable per voice from 0 (which has no portamento effect) up to an extreme setting of 127 (approximately 6 1/2 seconds for each octave of glide).

To set the portamento time value, follow these steps.



Play a few low notes followed by a few high notes to hear the portamento effect.

POLY and MONO Modes

The FB-01 has two playing modes per voice, POLY (short for polyphonic) and MONO (short for monophonic). The POLY mode allows more than one note to be played at a time while MONO mode allows only 1 note at a time. The MONO mode also features the ability to mimic the musical phrasings of a wind controlled instrument, such as a clarinet or saxophone. When in MONO mode, only the first note of a musical phrase receives full attack, as long as the second through last notes of the phrase are played in a legato fashion (not releasing a key until the next key is already depressed).

The MONO mode has one additional feature. If the portamento time value is set to a value higher than 0 (zero), then the portamento effect will only be heard between notes that are played in a legato fashion. When playing staccato notes, you will not hear the portamento effect. Some Yamaha keyboard owners already know this feature as "fingered portamento".

t

display will read explanation action press VOICE current mode is displayed FUNCTION POLY #1 Mode until preh DATA ENTRY DATA ENTRY 1/N 0 1/YES MONO or #1 Mode MONO mode has been selected as desired

To set POLY or MONO modes, follow these steps.

Play a few notes in MONO mode with the portamento time value higher than zero to hear the "fingered portamento" effect described earlier.

PMD — Pitch Modulation Device

Pitch modulation is accomplished by an LFO (Low Frequency Oscillator) to produce effects such as vibrato, growling and trills. A modulation source device is used to determine how much of the LFO effect is heard. The FB-01 gives you a choice of 4 source devices: modulation wheel, after touch, foot controller, or breath controller. A fifth option of OFF is provided if you don't want the instrument to respond to a modulation source device.



Figure 11: PMD Devices

- N. C.

To choose a pitch modulation device, follow these steps. action display will read explanation press VOICE current PMD parameter is dis-FUNCTION #1 PMD **VHEEL** played until press DATA ENTRY 1/NO or #1 PMD TOUCH select a new PMD controller as desired



Figure 12: Inst Assign and Inst Select Key View

Multi-Timbre/Multi-MIDI Channel Capabilities of the FB-01

MIDI CHANNEL BASICS

The INST ASSIGN and

INST SELECT Keys

MIDI is designed as a multi-channel means of passing information between musical instruments and devices. MIDI has 16 channels that are transmitted over a single cable. This multi-channel capability can be compared to cable TV wiring, where many different channels are broadcast simultaneously over a single cable. A television is equipped to "tune in" a single channel at a time, ignoring those channels that are not needed. Setting the MIDI channel accomplishes the same thing. For example, if we set the MIDI channel to 1, then everything on channels 2 through 16 is ignored.

MIDI CHANNELS AND MIDI ZONES

Each instrument in the FB-01 may be set to receive MIDI data on its own MIDI channel. Since you can have up to 8 instruments active at one time, it is possible to monitor 8 different MIDI channels all from the same unit. This is further enhanced by the ability to have a different voice for each instrument.

In addition to its MIDI channel assignment, each instrument can be assigned to a specific keyboard range. Only notes that are played within the specified range will be played by that instrument. The range is determined by a low note limit and a high note limit. All notes below the low note limit are ignored. Similarly, all notes above the high note limit are also ignored. The valid note range is commonly known as a MIDI zone.

To summarize, for the FB-01 to sound a note, the note must be on a MIDI channel that has an instrument assigned to it, AND the note must fall within the lower and upper note limits.

Instrument Select Key

The INSTRUMENT SELECT key is used to choose individual instruments. A selection of up to 8 instruments is possible, depending on how the FB-01's 8 notes are allocated in a configuration. In order to experiment with many instruments, select configuration memory 19 (dual); see page 23 if necessary for instructions on how to change configuration memories. In the FB-01 front panel display, the first 2 characters indicate the instrument number. The INSTRUMENT SELECT key functions incrementally. For example, if Instrument #1 is displayed, then pressing the INSTRUMENT SELECT key will change the front panel display from "#1" to "#2".

à

NOTE:__

Be sure to change the configuration number back to number 17 to continue with the rest of the manual.

MIDI Channel Set Up

MIDI channel numbers are 1 through 16.

To set the MIDI channel for an instrument, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST ASSIGN Until	#1 MIDI ch# 1	current MIDI channel is dis- played

* if you would like to change the MIDI channel of a different instrument:



Number of Notes Allocation

The FB-01 is capable of playing 8 notes. These may be distributed among instruments until all 8 notes have been allocated. The number of notes is variable from 0 to 8. To allocate a specific number of notes to an instrument, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST ASSIGN Until	#1 Notes 8	current-number of notes is dis- played
press DATA ENTRY - 1/NO as desired NOTE:	#1 Notes 7	new number of notes is dis- played
こんさい んしゅうかい 一分割の たいかいの	es for the FB-01 has been rea	ached, the [DATA +1/YES] key

As an example of a multi-instrument configuration, assign seven (7) notes to instrument #1 and 1 note to instrument #2 using the following steps.

Set instrument #1 to play seven (7) notes.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST ASSIGN Until	#1 Notes 8	current number of notes is dis- played
press DATA ENTRY - 1/NO Once	#1 Notes 7	new number of notes is dis- played

Change to instrument #2.

action	display will read	explanation
press	#2 Notes 0	increments instrument # and shows the number of notes as- signed to instrument #2

Set instrument #2 to play 1 note.

action	display will read	explanation
DATA ENTRY +1/YES once	#2 Notes 1	one note is now assigned to instrument #2

Lower/Upper Note Limits

A valid range of notes can be set for each instrument. This is sometimes called "MIDI Zoning". Lower and upper note limits can be set from C-2 to G8 (C3 = middle C).

 action
 display will read
 explanation

 press
 #1 Limit/L C-2
 current value is displayed

 until
 press

 DATA ENTRY
 #1 Limit/L C 2

 as desired
 #1 Limit/L C 2

if you would like to change the low key limit on a different instrument:

action	display will read	explanation
press INST SELECT as desired	#2 Limit/L C 5	new instrument # with its cur- rent low key limit is displayed

For example, if the low key limit is set to C2, no sound is made by the FB-01 when a note below C2 is played.

To set the upper note limit, follow these steps.

*

To set the lower note limit, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST ASSIGN Until	#1 Limit/H G8	current high key limit is dis- played
press Data entry - 1/NO until	#1 Limit/H G3 .	new high note limit is set

if you would like to change the high key limit on a different instrument:

action	display will read	explanation
press INST SELECT Until	#2 Limit/H A#7	new instrument # with its cur- rent high key limit is displayed



Figure 13: MIDI Note Ranges

***.*.

- A

SYSTEM SET UP INST ASSIGN	VOICE FUNCTION	DATA ENTRY + 1/YES VO/CE SELECT

Figure 14: Instrument Function Key View

Setting the Output Level

The INSTRUMENT FUNCTION Key

The output level (volume) of each instrument is programmable on the FB-01. This is useful for balancing individual instrument volume levels within a Configuration Memory. The output level is variable from 0 (zero, no output) to 127 (full volume).

District of

To set the programmable output level for an instrument, follow these steps.



if you would like to change the output level of a different instrument:

action	display will read	explanation
UNST SELECT Until	#2 Out Level 127	new instrument # is displayed

Try setting the output level at 80, then 100, then 120, etc. to hear the effect of changing the instrument volume. There are 128 different output level settings.

Octave Transposition

The FB-01 has the capability to transpose notes by as much as 2 octaves up or down in octave increments.

action display will read explanation press INST FUNCTION current octave transposition is #1 Octave 0 displayed until press DATA ENTRY TA ENTR new octave transposition is or 1/YES #1 Octave ,-1 displayed until

To set the octave value, follow these steps.

if you would like to change the octave transpose on a different instrument:

action	display will read	explanation
press INST SELECT Until	#2 Octave 0	new instrument # is displayed

Detuning an Instrument

*

Detuning of instruments can be used to cause chorusing effects. The detune value is variable from -64 to +63.

To set a detune value for an instrument, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST FUNCTION Until	#1 Detune 0	current detune value is displayed
DATA ENTRY - 1/NO until	#1 Detune -1	new detuning value is displayed

★ if you would like to detune other instruments:

action	display will read	explanation
press INST SELECT Until	#2 Detune 0	new instrument # is displayed

Try detuning up or down by an increment of 6 to 10 (or -6 to -10) to simulate a chorusing effect.

Stereo Panning

Panning allows you to place an instrument within a stereo field. The FB-01 allows you a choice of L(eft), R(ight) or LR(both, center) for each instrument.

Sec. 2.

To set the PAN setting, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST FUNCTION Until	#1 Stereo LR	current pan setting is displayed
press DATA ENTRY - 3/NO until	#1 Stereo L	new pan setting is displayed

if you would like to change the pan setting on a different instrument:

1.5

action	display will r	ead	explanation
press INST SELECT as desired	#2 Stereo	LR	new instrument # is displayed

LFO (Low Frequency Oscillator) ON/OFF Toggle

The LFO effect can be toggled ON or OFF for any voice which has LFO in the voice data.

To toggle the LFO on/off, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation
press INST FUNCTION until	#1 LFO ON	current LFO setting is displayed
press	#1 LFO OFF	new LFO setting is displayed

if you would like to change the LFO toggle on a different instrument:

action	display will read		explanation
press INST SELECT Until	#2, LF0	ON	new instrument # is displayed

The rate and waveshape of the LFO is determined by the last voice selected in a configuration, regardless of the instrument number that the voice is assigned to. To assure the desired LFO rate and waveshape will be active in a configuration, assign the voice with the desired LFO settings last.

The SYSTEM SET UP Key

	DATA ENTRY	
		VOICE SELECT

Figure 15: System Set Up Key View

Configuration Memories

The FB-01 contains twenty configuration memories. Four of these configuration memories, numbers 17 through 20, are set at the factory and cannot be modified. These four ROM Configuration Memories are quite useful as starting points for setting up your own configuration memories.

The sixteen RAM Configuration Memories are labeled as user Configuration Memories on the front panel display.

When selected, a Configuration Memory will automatically call up:

- Voice
- *Voice Functions

Instruments

Instrument Functions.

For example, when Configuration Memory number 17 is selected, the following items are called up automatically:

- 1. One instrument with 8 notes allocated to the instrument
- 2. MIDI channel is set to 1
- 3. Upper note limit is set to G-8
- 4. Lower note limit is set to C-2
- 5. Output level is set to 127 (full volume)
- 6. Octave select is set to 0 (no transposition)
- 7. No detuning
- 8. Instrument output on both the Left and Right channels
- 9. LFO is ON
- *10. Bender amount is set to 2 (full-step)
- *11. Portamento Time is 0
- *12. POLY mode is active
- *13. Pitch Modulation Device is WHEEL
- 14. Voice selected is bank 3, voice 1 (Brass).

* These Voice Function data parameters may be assigned new values that are stored as part of the Configuration data. These values are exactly the same as the Voice Function data values that are stored with a Voice, except that they are stored as part of a Configuration. When a Configuration is selected, the Voice Function data stored in the Configuration will override the Voice Function data that is stored with the Voice. Once a Configuration is recalled, any further Voice selections that are made would cause the Voice Function data stored with the Voice to be recalled when the Voice is selected, as long as the Combine Mode parameter is set to "ON" (see page 23). To set Voice Function data values to be stored as part of a Configuration, follow the instructions for setting Voice Function data values (see pages $12 \sim 15$), then store the Configuration as described on 24.)

I)

· . . .



To select configuration number 17, follow these steps.

Combine Mode

When the combine mode is ON, all voice function data such as bender amount and portamento time are recalled when a voice is loaded. When the combine mode is OFF, the voice function data is NOT recalled with the loaded voice.

To set the combine mode value, follow these steps.

action	display will read	explanation	
Press SYSTEM SETUP Until	#1 CombineON	current value is displayed	
DATA ENTRY - 1/NO until	#1 Combine OFF	new combine value is displayed	

Memory Protection

Memory protect is used to prevent accidental storage of modifications to the FB-01's memory. If the memory protect is ON, changes to voice data, voice function data, instrument data, instrument assign data, or configuration memories CANNOT be saved (through the save voice or save configuration operations).



Figure 16: Memory Protection



To turn the memory protect ON or OFF, follow these steps.

机冲进制燃料的机气 建合物 法管理部分 计图片分析 法法院议会

Storing a Configuration

Sixteen (16) user configuration memory locations are available to store user configurations.

To store a configuration, follow these steps.



Press any key to return to the previous function.

System Channel Number

The FB-01 system channel number is used to designate which MIDI channel is used for system exclusive messages. A system exclusive message is MIDI data that is transmitted specifically for one instrument or device. A system exclusive message for the FB-01 can only be recognized by a Yamaha FB-01, or some device (such as a computer) that is instructed to recognize FB-01 system exclusive data.

t

)) In a system with more than one FB-01, each FB-01 can be set to receive system exclusive messages on a separate channel. The system channel number may be set to any of the 16 MIDI channel numbers.



Figure 17: System Channel Number

To set the system channel number, follow these steps.

WARD FOR THE REAL



MIDI Bulk Data Dumps

The SYSTEM SET UP key is used to initiate bulk dumps of voice data or configuration data. This is discussed in detail in the next section of this manual.

Keycode Number Receive Mode

The MIDI specification assigns 1 of 128 possible note values to each key on a keyboard. The FB-01 has the capability of recognizing all note values (normal operation) or just ODD or EVEN numbered note values. This feature can be quite useful when using two (2) FB-01s together in a system. By setting one FB-01 to recognize ODD key note values and the other to recognize EVEN key note values, the two FB-01s can essentially act as one unit with 16 note polyphony.

action	display will read	explanation			
press System SETLIP until	#1 Receive ALL	current key code receive mode is displayed			
DATA ENTRY 1/NO Until	#1 Receive EVEN	new key code receive mode is displayed			

1.1

To set the key code number receive mode, follow these steps.

1

•••

SECTION 4: MIDI Operations

The FB-01 understands the following MIDI codes: **MIDI Codes** Recognized by the FB-01 Name **Device Selection** Note Off Note On (or off with a velocity of 0) Controllers modulation wheel when PMD = WHEEL breath controller when PMD = BREATH foot controller when PMD = FOOT portamento time volume controller pan controller sustain pedal portamento pedal sostenuto pedal **Program Change** After Touch when PMD = TOUCHPitch Bend System Exclusive **Timing Clock** Start Continue Stop Active Sensing NOTE:__ In order to hear the effects of the modulation wheel, the breath controller, the foot controller, or after touch, the PMD (pitch modulation device) must

27

be selected for each of the 8 instruments in the FB-01.

MIDI Data Dumps

What is a MIDI Bulk Data Dump on the FB-01?

A MIDI bulk data dump is a group of numbers that the FB-01 understands through MIDI. These numbers indicate either the contents of the configuration memory or the voice banks.

4.5

ר

53

)'

a

0 -

Devices Capable of Storing MIDI Bulk Data

- The Yamaha QX1 digital sequencer stores many MIDI bulk dumps on each 5.25" disk.
- The Yamaha CX5M with the TeleWord Enhancer Cartridge stores many MIDI bulk data dumps on 3.5" disk, data cartridge, or cassette tape.
- Many computers have software that allows you to load and save many MIDI bulk data dumps per disk.
- There are other devices that are capable of storing MIDI bulk data dumps directly to disk or to other storage device.

Why Use a MIDI Bulk Data Dump?

There are several reasons to use a MIDI bulk data dump:

- They are universal. You can use MIDI bulk data dumps to store your FB-01 voice data and configuration data along with any other MIDI devices that utilize MIDI bulk data dumps for data storage.
- They are versatile. Some sequencers are able to send new voices to the FB-01 without having to load all the voices separately. This gives you an unlimited number of voices to play while sequencing.
- They can be utilized by computers that show you the contents of the FB-01 in an easy to read format.

How to Manually Send Configurations and Voices from the FB-01

- 1. Press the SYSTEM SET UP button until "Dump V.BANK1" appears.
 - Use the $\begin{bmatrix} -1 \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} +1 \end{bmatrix}$ buttons to select the desired data you wish to send.
 - V.BANK1 = voice bank 1 (voices $1 \sim 48$)
 - V.BANK2 = voice bank 2 (voices 1 ~ 48)
 - CONF.ME = configuration memory (configurations 1 ~ 16) CONFIG = current configuration buffer
- 3. Press the SYSTEM SET UP button. The display will ask if you are sure.
- 4. Press the <u>+1</u> button if you wish to send the bulk data (or press any other button to cancel).

How to Manually Receive Configurations and Voices to the FB-01

Turn memory protection OFF:

2.

- Press the SYSTEM SETUP button until "Protect ON" appears.
- Use the -1 button to turn the memory protection OFF.

Set the system exclusive MIDI channel:

• Press the SYSTEM SETUP button until "System ch#" appears.

.

 Use the <u>-1</u> and <u>+1</u> buttons to select the desired system MIDI channel (usually channel 1).

The FB-01 is now ready to accept MIDI bulk data.

When data is received the FB-01 will display "dump/received !!." This provides verification that the FB-01 received the MIDI bulk data.

Voicing the FB-01

121.2

- Creating new voices or modifying voices in the FB-01 requires a computer and software. Here are a few suggestions to help you find out about voicing the FB-01.
 - Computers commonly used by musicians: Yamaha CX5M Apple II series and Macintosh series IBM series (and compatibles) Commodore series Atari series
 - Look for easy to use software:

Be selective when shopping for voicing software. Try out the software yourself and make sure it does everything you would like it to do. Look for easy to understand displays and easy methods of program control. Also, make sure that the manual that comes with the software is complete and easy to understand. This will definitely help you get the maximum enjoyment and power from your FB-01.

SECTION 5: Sample Applications

this sector discusses the four configuration memories that are supplied by the factory in ROM as well as a few samples of how an FB-01 might be used in a MIDI system. While this is just scratching the surface of the capabilities of the LB-01, it is a good starting point.

Factory Supplied

Configuration Memory Number 17

Configuration number 17 is named "single". It is used to play up to eight notes of a single instrument, controlled from MIDI channel #1.

CONFIGURATION 17 NUMBER 17 VOICE FUNCTION ON COMBINE ON			NAME single									
			KEY-CODE NUMBER RECEIVE MODE				ALL					
INSTRUMENT NUMBER		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8			
	MIDI CHANNI	EL .	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
INST ASSIGN	NUMBER OF NOTES		8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
	KEY-CODE NUMBER LIMIT/L		C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2		
	KEY-CODE NUMBER LIMIT/H		G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8		
VOICE	VOICE NUMBER		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1		
SELECT	VOICE BANK	NUMBER	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3		
INST FUNCTION	OUTPUT LEVE	L ^{an} est for a	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	127		
	OCTAVE TRAM	NSPOSE	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
	DETUNE	 ► 4: 	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
	STEREO	n an	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R		
	LFO ENABLE	- Record topp	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON		
	PITCHBENDE	R RANGE [®] d. C.	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2		
VOICE	PORTAMENTO	ТІМЕ	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
FUNCTION	POLY/MONO	e in 1997 - 1999 -	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY		
	INPUT CONTR	OLLER (PMD)	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL		

Configuration memory number 17 is set up as follows:

Figure 18: Configuration Memory Number 17

1-1-3-

Configuration number 18 is named "mono 8". It is used to play a single note of each of 8 instruments, with each instrument on a different MIDI channel.

. สำคัญสำคัญสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาวเป็นสาว

Considerate Carlo Carlo Carlos

ź

CONFIGURATION NUMBER18VOICE FUNCTION COMBINEONINSTRUMENT NUMBER34		NAME		топо 8				<u></u>			
		MODE	KEY-CODE NUMBER RECEIVE				ALL				
		1	2	3	41	5	6	14031			
	MIDI CHANNE	L	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 8	
INST	NUMBER OF N	IOTES	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
ASSIGN	KEY-CODE NU		C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	
يرب تومينو	KEY-CODE NU	MBER LIMIT/H	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	
VOICE		H. Company	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
SELECT	I YOICE DANK N	UMBER	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
INST FUNCTION			127	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	
	OCTAVE TRAN		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	DETUNE		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	SIEREO		L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	
	LFO ENABLE		ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	
FUNCTION	PITCHBENDER	RANGE	2	4	4	7	2	5	2	2	
	PORTAMENTO	TIME	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	POLY/MONO		POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	
	INPUT CONTRO	LLER (PMD)	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	OFF	

Configuration memory number 18 is set up as follows:

Figure 19: Configuration Memory Number 18

Configuration Memory Number 19

Configuration number 19 is named "dual". It is used to play a "stacked" sound which is created by two instruments, controlled on 1 MIDI channel with the same MIDI zone. Up to 4 notes can be played at a time.

Configuration memory number 19 is set up as follows:

CONFIGURATION NUMBER19VOICE FUNCTION COMBINEONINSTRUMENT NUMBER		19	NAME	duai							
		KEY-CO MODE	DE NUM	BER REC	EIVE	ALL					
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
	MIDI CHANNEL		1	1	3	4	5	6	7	8	
INST			4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	
ASSIGN	KEY-CODE N	Y-CODE NUMBER LIMIT/L		C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	
KEY-CODE N		UMBER LIMIT/H	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	⁻ G8	G8	G8	
VOICE	VOICE NUMBER		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
SELECT	LECT VOICE BANK NUMBER		3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	OUTPUT LEV	EL	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	
INST FUNCTION	OCTAVE TRA	NSPOSE	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	DETUNE	· · · · · ·	0	+4	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	STEREO		L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	
	LFO ENABLE		ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	
VOICE FUNCTION	PITCHBENDE	R RANGE	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
	PORTAMENT	ΟΤΙΜΕ	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	POLY/MONO	at type og for for anderen. Det synthesis i Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strategie Strate	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	
x +	INPUT CONT	ROLLER (PMD)	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	

Figure 20: Configuration Memory Number 19
Configuration Memory Number 20

Configuration number 20 is named "split". It is used to play a single keyboard split with one instrument of four notes on the upper half of the keyboard and 4 notes of another instrument on the lower half of the keyboard.

Sand in the second

のたちなる

	ATION	20	NAME		split						
VOICE FUN COMBINE	CTION : High V	ON	KEY-C	KEY-CODE NUMBER RECEIVE				ALL			
				- 2	- 3	47	5	6	7	8	
an io alder	MIDI CHANNE	L. <u>11</u> ; vite in 5)	1	1	3	4	5	6	7	8	
INST	NUMBER OF	NOTES	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	
ASSIGN	KEY-CODE NU	MBER LIMIT/L	СЗ	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	C-2	
privettet :	KEY-CODE NU	MBER LIMIT/H	G8	B2	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	G8	
VOICE		ER	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
SELECT		NUMBER	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	.3	
, atroni una , Marina in pi	OUTPUT LEVE	L the strain	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	127	
INST	OCTAVE TRAN	ISPOSE	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,	0	
FUNCTION	DETUNE	tuo dila 1905	0	0	0	0	0	0	o	0	
rational.	STEREO	and and a second se	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	L+R	
Andrea of	LFO ENABLE		ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	ON	
terre de la companya	PITCHBENDER	RANGE	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
VOICE	PORTAMENTO	TIME	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
FUNCTION	POLY/MONO		POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	POLY	
	INPUT CONTRO	DLLER (PMD)	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	WHEEL	

Configuration memory number 20 is set up as follows:

Figure 21: Configuration Memory Number 20

Sample MIDI System Set Ups





Figure 22: KX88 Controller with an FB-01

NOTE:_

Another keyboard may be substituted for the KX88. Suitable substitutions include a DX7, a KX76/KX5/KX1 or any other keyboard capable of transmitting MIDI information. For the best results, a velocity sensitive/pressure sensitive keyboard is recommended.

Using the KX88 controller with the FB-01, you can play the following:

- up to 8 notes of a single voice using 1 instrument, 1 MIDI channel, 8 note allocation, 1 voice
- a two voice keyboard split with definable split point and note allocation using 2 instruments, 2 MIDI channels, variable # of notes, 2 voices or

using 2 instruments with different MIDI zones, 1 MIDI channel, variable # of notes, 2 voices

up to 8 MIDI zones with definable zones and note allocation per zone using 1 or more instruments, 1 MIDI channel, variable # of notes, different or overlapping note ranges for each instrument or

using 1 or more instruments, 2 MIDI channels, variable # of notes, different or overlapping note ranges for each instrument, and using the KX88 in "dual mode"

a two voice stack with four notes per layer of sound using 2 instruments, 2 MIDI channels, 4 notes each instrument, 2 voices

using 2 instruments with the same MIDI zone, 1 MIDI channel, variable # of notes (4 per instrument is recommended), 2 voices

an eight voice layer of sound from a single note.

or

using 8 instruments, 1 MIDI channel, 1 note each instrument, 8 voices

Notes when using a DX7 or DX9 as a controller:

In order to be able to switch voice numbers through MIDI from a DX7 or a DX9 the "MIDI SYS INFO" function value should be set to "UNAVAIL".

Notes when using a DX21, DX27 or DX100 as a controller:

In order to be able to switch voice numbers through MIDI from a DX21, DX27 or DX100, function values for "MIDI CH INFO" should be set to "ON" and "MIDI SYS INFO" should be set to "OFF".

Application 2 - KX88 Controller with an FB-01 and a QX21 Sequencer



Figure 23: KX88 Controller with an FB-01 and a QX21 Sequencer

NOTE:_

Other sequencers may be substituted for the QX21. Suitable substitutions include the QX1, QX7, CX5M computer with appropriate software (FM Composer or MIDI Recorder), or another MIDI sequencer.

The QX21 sequencer will record up to 16 MIDI channels of sequence data. The multiple MIDI channel capabilities of the FB-01 are well suited for use with the QX21. With one FB-01, up to 8 independent musical parts and voices may be played by the QX21. With two FB-01s, up to 16 independent musical parts and voices may be played. The number of available notes per instrument can be doubled by using the Keycode Receive Mode ODD/EVEN parameter.

When using the QX21 sequencer, you may find sequencing easier if the "RE-CORDING MIDI CHANNEL" (JOB A-6) is set to "ALL". You may also play instruments of the FB-01 in real-time with a sequence if the "ECHO BACK" (JOB C-4) is set to "ON". For further information on the QX21, consult your QX21 Owner's Manual.

Application 3 — Using the FB-01 with a CX5M and MIDI Recorder (with any MIDI Keyboard)

h

35

ie

of

ıd

Ķ

This application takes advantage of the FB-01's multi-MIDI channel capabilities while using the CX5M as a sequencer. Note that in this example, all eight of the FB-01's instruments will only play a single note. If you wish to assign some of the instruments more notes, simply assign some of the instruments zero notes and add notes to make some of the instruments polyphonic.

Connections:



Figure 24: FB-01 with a CX5M and MIDI Recorder with any MIDI Keyboard

Set Up:

- 1. Turn MIDI Recorder MIDI Merge ON.
- 2. Call up the mono 8 configuration (18) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- 3. On the MIDI keyboard, set the MIDI out channel number to 1.
- 4. Play/select the voice you wish to record first on the FB-01.
- 5. Record the track.
- 6. Set the MIDI out channel number to 2, and repeat steps 4 and 5.
- 7. Merge the two tracks that you have sequenced into a single one (be sure to consult your MIDI Recorder Owner's Manual on how to merge tracks together).
- 8. Repeat the above steps for MIDI channels 3 through 8, merging and saving your sequence as necessary.

Net State



Application 4 — Using the FB-01 with a DX100/DX27/DX21

This application shows how to make use of the FB-01's multi-MIDI zoning capabilities. This allows you to tell the FB-01 to assign different areas of the DX100/DX27/DX21 keyboard to play different instruments in the FB-01. Be sure you adjust the following MIDI zone areas to suit your needs.

Connections:

ni soni



Figure 25: FB-01 with a DX100/DX27/DX21

- 1. Call up the split configuration (19) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- Make all 8 instruments play a single note by reducing instruments 1 and 2 to play 1 note, and distribute the remaining six notes to instruments 3 through 8.
- 3. Set each instrument to play the desired voice (use the VOICE SELECT button).
- Set the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST ASSIGN until Limit/L appears in the front panel display. Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired lowest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- Set the upper limit of the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST ASSIGN again (Limit/H appears in the front panel display). Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired highest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- 6. Repeat the above steps for all eight instruments.
- 7. Now you have eight independent splits you can play from your DX100/DX27/DX21 synthesizer.

Application 5 — Using the FB-01 with a DX100 and a QX21 Sequencer

This application takes advantage of the FB-01's multi-MIDI channel capabilities while using the QX21 as a sequencer. Note that in this example, all eight of the FB-01's instruments will only play a single note. If you wish to assign some of the instruments more notes, simply assign zero notes to some of the instruments and add notes to make some of the instruments polyphonic.

ι**†**



Connections:

Figure 26: FB-01 with a DX100 and a QX21 Sequencer

- 1. Set the DX100 receive on MIDI channel 9 so that it can be played as a ninth track by the QX21 (the transmit channel will be changed later for each track).
- 2. Turn the QX21 MIDI echo back ON so that you can hear sound from the FB-01 while you record.
- 3. Call up the mono 8 configuration (18) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- 4. On the DX100, set the MIDI out channel number to 1.
- 5. Play/select the voice you wish to record first on the FB-01.
- 6. Record the track.
- 7. Set the MIDI out channel number to 2, and repeat steps 4 and 5.
- Merge the two tracks that you have sequenced into a single one (Consult your QX21 Owner's Manual if you are unsure of how to merge tracks together.).
- Repeat the above steps for MIDI channels 3 through 8 (plus channel 9 on the DX100), merging and saving your sequence as necessary.

Application 6 — Using two FB-01s with a KX5 and a QX21 Sequencer

This application takes full advantage of the FB-01's multi-MIDI channel capabilities while using the QX21 as a sequencer. In this example, we will assign each of the 16 total FB-01 instruments to a unique MIDI channel. All 16 of the instruments will only play a single note. This example also takes advantage of the FB-01's velocity sensitivity ability. If you wish to assign some of the instruments more notes, simply assign some of the instruments zero notes and add notes to make some of the instruments polyphonic.

Connections:



Figure 27: Two FB-01s with a KX5 Remote Controller and a QX21 Sequencer

- Turn the QX21 MIDI echo back ON so that you can hear sound from the FB-01 while you record (note since the KX5 only transmits on MIDI channels 1 and 2, you will have to channelize its output in the QX21 and hear the correct MIDI channel played on sequence playback).
- Call up the mono 8 configuration (18) on the FB-01 #1 and #2 (see page 23).
- On the FB-01 #2, set its instruments 1 through 8 to MIDI channels 9 through 16. To do this use the INST ASSIGN button.
- 4. Play/select the voice you wish to record first on the FB-01.
- Record the track (be sure to set the proper MIDI channel on the QX21 (1 through 16)).
- 6. Record your next track (be sure to set the proper MIDI channel on the QX21).
- Merge the two tracks that you have sequenced into a single track (consult your QX21 Owner's Manual if you are unsure of how to use the merge function).
- 8. Repeat the above steps for each instrument in each FB-01.

Application 7 — Using the FB-01 with a KX76 & QX1 Sequencer

This application takes advantage of the FB-01's multi-MIDI channel capabilities while using the QX1 as a sequencer. Note that in this example, four of the FB-01's instruments will play only two notes. If you wish to assign some of the instruments more notes, simply assign some of the instruments zero notes and add notes to the other instruments.

Connections:



Figure 28: FB-01 with a KX76 and a QX1 Sequencer

Set Up:

- 1. Call up the mono 8 configuration (18) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- Now set the FB-01 to play four instruments with 2 notes on each. Press INST ASSIGN until Notes is displayed. Press INST SELECT until instrument #5 is shown. Press -1 to reduce the number of notes to zero. Repeat this for instruments 6 through 8.
- Now add the notes you took away from instrument 5 through 8 to instruments 1 through 4. Press +1 to add a note, press INST SELECT to go to the next instrument.
- 4. Set the QX1 to send the first 4 tracks out the MIDI out connector 1 (job command 03: output assign).
- 5. Set the QX1 to record on MIDI channel 1 (job command 04: receive condition).
- 6. On the KX76, set the MIDI out channel number to 1.
- 7. Play/select the voice you wish to record first on the FB-01.
- 8. Record the track.
- 9. Set the MIDI out channel number to 2 and set the QX1 recording channel to 2 and repeat the above steps for each of the four tracks.

. Same

Application 8 — Using the FB-01 with a Clavinova or PSR-70

This application shows how to make use of the FB-01's multi-MIDI zoning capabilities. This allows you to tell the FB-01 to assign different areas of the Clavinova or PSR-70 keyboard to play different instruments on the FB-01. Be sure you set the following MIDI zone areas to suit your needs.

Connections:



Figure 29: FB-01 with a Clavinova or PSR-70

- 1. Call up the split configuration (19) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- 2. Make all 8 instruments play a single note by reducing instruments 1 and 2 to play 1 note, and assign the remaining six to instruments 3 through 8.
- 3. Set each instrument to play the desired voice (use the VOICE SELECT button).
- Set the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST SELECT until Limit/L appears in the front panel display. Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired lowest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- Set the upper limit of the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST SELECT again (Limit/H appears in the front panel display). Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired highest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- 6. Repeat the above steps for all eight instruments.
- 7. Set your MIDI keyboard to transmit on MIDI channel 1 if necessary.
- 8. Now you have eight independent splits you can play from your Clavinova or PSR-70 synthesizer.

Application 9 — Using the FB-01 with any MIDI Keyboard

This application shows how to make use of the FB-01's multi-MIDI zoning capabilities. This allows you to tell the FB-01 to assign different areas of any MIDI keyboard to play different instruments on the FB-01. Be sure you set the following MIDI zone areas to suit your needs.

Connections:



Figure 30: FB-01 with any MIDI Keyboard

Set Up:

- 1. Call up the split configuration (19) on the FB-01 (see page 23).
- 2. Make all 8 instruments play a single note by reducing instruments 1 and 2 to play 1 note, and assign the remaining six to instruments 3 through 8.
- 3. Set each instrument to play the desired voice (use the VOICE SELECT button).
- 4. Set the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST SELECT until Limit/L appears in the front panel display. Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired lowest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- Set the upper limit of the zone of instrument 1 by pressing INST SELECT again (Limit/H appears in the front panel display). Use the -1/+1 keys to adjust the note number to the desired highest note you would like instrument 1 to play.
- 6. Repeat the above steps for all eight instruments.
- 7. Set your MIDI keyboard to transmit on MIDI channel 1.
- 8. Now you have eight independent splits you can play from your MIDI keyboard.

Ø

42

SECTION 6: Specifications

A

* *

Ł

١.

Second Generator		FM tone generator	
		(4 operators, 8 algorithms)	
Polyphony		Lin to 9 notes	
(styphony		Up to 8 notes	
Voices		Maximum of 8	
Internal Memory		240 ROM voices	
		96 RAM voices	
-		4 ROM configurations	
		16 RAM configurations	
Panel Switches			
	mode selection:		
		SYSTEM SET UP	
		INST ASSIGN	
		INST FUNCTION	6 .
		VOICE FUNCTION	
		VOICE SELECT	ľ
	instrument selection:		1
	1.7	INST SELECT	(
	data entry:		
		+1 / YES	
		-1 / NO	
Display		16 digit, light emitting	
Connection Terminals	audio output:	left, right (1/4″)	
	MIDt:	IN, OUT, THRU	ţ
Boundar Curranha			
Power Supply	U.S. & Canadian Models:		ł
Power Consumption	General Models:	220 ~ 240V, 50 Hz	
rower consumption		9 watts	
Dimensions		218 (w) x 48 (h) x 274 (d) mm	e (, 🖲
Weight		2.1 kg	
		o	
Environmental Limits		operating temperature 0 ~ 35 (°C)	ļ
		operating humidity 20 ~ 80%	
. .			
Accessories		MIDI cable	
			i t

;

54)

T

Aľ

N

Th M on the op rec

SI

Th ani

Nc

Sta No

Ke

Note: Specifications are subject to change without notice.

MIDI .

Throughout this part of the manual there are three numbering schemes used: binary, decimal, and hexadecimal.

binary looks like this%00011111decimal looks like this31hexadecimal looks like this\$1 F

All of the variables used to describe bits in certain data bytes are listed below.

- c = control number
- d = data
- e = check sum
- f = fraction
- h = high byte count
- i = instrument number $(0 \sim 7)$
- k = key number
- I = low byte count
- n = MIDI channel number (0 ~ 15)
- p = parameter number or program number
- s = system exclusive channel number (0 \sim 15)
- v = value
- w = general variable (defined where used)
- x = general variable (defined where used)
- y = general variable (defined where used)
- z = general variable (defined where used)

MIDI Data Recognized (MIDI IN)

This section is subdivided into three sections: Standard MIDI Codes, System Exclusive MIDI Codes, and Other MIDI Codes. Standard MIDI Codes lists all of the general MIDI codes that the FB-01 understands (note off, note on/off, control change, program change, after touch, and pitch bend). System Exclusive MIDI Codes lists all of the system exclusive MIDI events that the FB-01 recognizes (dump requests, data dumps, parameter changes, operation requests, and event lists). Other MIDI Codes lists all of the single byte, real-time codes that the FB-01 recognizes (MIDI real time clock, start, continue, stop, and active sensing).

Standard MIDI Codes

This list includes the following MIDI events: note off, note on/off, control change, program change, after touch, and pitch bend.

Note OFF		
Status	%1000nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Note Number	%0kkkkkk	k = 0 (note C-2) ~ 127 (note G8) The actual sound range of the FB-01 is D#-1 ~ D7 (depending
Key Velocity	%0vvvvvv	on transpose), but the FB-01 will automatically adjust. v = release velocity is ignored

Note ON/OFF

Status	%1001nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Note Number	%0kkkkkk	k = 0 (note C-2) ~ 127 (note G8) The actual sound range of the FB-01 is D#-1 ~ D7 (depending on transpose), but the FB-01 will automatically adjust.
Key Velocity	%0vvvvvv	v = 0 means note OFF $v = 1 \sim 127$ means note ON with the velocity of v

Control Change

Status	%1011nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Control No.	%Occcccc	c = Controller Number
Control Value	%0vvvvvv	v = control value

Controller #	Controller Name	Control Value
\$01	modulation wheel (pmd)	v = 0 ~ 127
\$02	breath controller (pmd)	v = 0 ~ 127
\$04	foot controller (pmd)	v = 0 ~ 127
\$05	portamento time	v = 0 ~ 127
\$07	volume controller	v = 0 ~ 127
\$0A	pan controller	v = 0, 64, 127
\$40	sustain pedal	v = 0, 127
\$41	portamento pedal	v = 0.127
\$42	sostenuto pedal	v = 0, 127
\$7B	all notes OFF	v = 0
\$7E	mono mode ON	v = 1
\$7F	poly mode ON	v = 0

Program Change

Status	%1100nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Program Number	%0ррррррр	p = program number

After Touch

Value (MSB)

Status	% 11 01nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Pressure	%0vvvvvv	v = pressure (PMD must be set to TOUCH)
Pitch Bend		
Status	%1110nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Value (LSB)	%Ογγγγγγγ	

- -----

%0xxxxxxx x, y = pitch bend amount

System Exclusive MIDI Codes

This list includes the following MIDI system exclusive events: dump requests, data dump formats (voice banks, configurations, and instrument voice data), parameter changes, operation requests, and event lists.

Dump Requests

g

.

There are seven dump requests that the FB-01 recognizes: voice bank 0, voice bank x, current configuration buffer, configuration memory, identification number, and instrument i voice data.

voice bank 0 voice bank x (x = 0 ~ 6) current configuration buffer configuration memory xx (xx = 0 ~ 19) all configuration memory identification number instrument i voice data (i = 8 ~ 15)	\$F0 \$F0 \$F0 \$F0 \$F0	\$43 \$43 \$43 \$43 \$43	\$75 \$75 \$75 \$75 \$75 \$75	\$0s \$0s \$0s \$0s	\$20 \$20 \$20 \$20 \$20 \$20	\$01 \$02 \$03 \$04	\$0x \$00 \$xx \$00 \$00	\$F7 \$F7 \$F7 \$F7
 * S = System Channel/number i = Instrument number + 8 	\$F0	\$43	\$75	\$0s			\$00 Liii	

Recognized Dumps

There are seven dumps that the FB-01 recognizes: voice bank 0, voice bank x, current configuration buffer, configuration memory xx, all configuration memories, identification number, and instrument i voice data. Voice data must be sent as two byte pairs since the high bit is set on certain data bytes. Configuration data must be sent as single bytes since the high bit is never set in its data format. Their format is given in the MIDI Data Transmitted (MIDI OUT) description under Transmitted Dumps.

Parameter Changes

There are three different tables of parameters that can be changed: configuration parameter changes, voice data parameter changes, and system functions.

Parameter Table 1 (Configuration Parameters)

There are two ways to change the following table of parameters. The first way is by the MIDI channel only (all instruments on the MIDI channel will change) and the second is by the SYSTEM channel plus the instrument number.

Parameter #	Value Ranges	Name
\$00 ~ SOF \$10 \$11 \$12 \$13 \$14 \$15 \$16 \$17 \$18 ~ 3F	0 ~ 127 0 ~ 127 0 ~ 127 0 ~ 3 0, 1 0, 1 0 ~ 3 0 ~ 7	(see instrument definition block, p.52) LFO speed amd pmd wave form LFO load enable sync (to note/on) LFO ams pms Reserved area

47

Parameter Change by MIDI Channel (Table 1)

Status	\$F0	
I.D.	\$43	
Sub-status/Ch.	%0001nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Parameter Group	\$15	
Parameter	%000ppppp	p = \$00 ~ \$17
Data	%0dddddd	d = data
End of Exclusive	\$F7	

Parameter Change by System Channel + Instrument Number (Table 1)			
Status	\$F0		
1.D.	\$43		
Sub-status	\$75		
System Channel	%0000ssss	s = System channel number	
Instrument	%00011iii	i = instrument number	
		i = 0 ~ 7 (inst #1 ~ inst #8)	
Parameter	%000ррррр	p = \$00 ~ \$17	
Data	%0dddddd	d = data	
End of Exclusive	\$F7		

Parameter Table 2 (Voice Data Parameters)

Parameter No.	Values	Name
\$40 ~ \$7F		(see voice data table block, p.52)
		Parameter # = offset number of voice data + \$40

.

Ø

Parameter Change by MIDI Channel (Table 2)

Status	\$F0	
I.D.	\$43	
Sub-status/Ch.	%0001nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Parameter Group	\$15	
Parameter	%Оррррррр	p = \$40 ~ \$7F
Data Low	′%0000уууу	
Data High	%0000xxxx	x+y = data
End of Exclusive	\$F7	

Parameter Change b	y System Channel + Ins	strument Number (Table 2)
Status	\$F0	
I.D.	\$43	
Sub-status	\$75	
Channel	%0000ssss	s = System channel number
Instrument	%00011iii	i = instrument number
		i = 0 ~ 7 (inst #1 ~ inst #8)
Parameter	%Оррррррр	p = \$40 ~ \$7F
Data Low	%0000yyyy	
Data High	%0000xxxx	$x+y = * data $ (* data Low 4bit $\rightarrow yyyy$ Hign 4bit $\rightarrow xxxx$)
End of Exclusive	\$F7	

Parameter Table 3 (System Functions)

Parameter #	Values	Name
\$08 ~ \$0D \$20 \$21 \$22 \$24	0 ~ 15 0, 1 0 ~ 19 0 ~ 127	(see configuration data block, p.51 ~ 52) system channel number memory protect configuration number master output level

Parameter Change by MIDI channel (Table 3)

Status	\$F0	
I.D.	\$43	
Sub-status	\$75	
System message	%0000ssss	s = System channel number
	\$10	
Parameter	%0ррррррр	p = \$00 ~ \$24
Data	%0dddddd	d = data
End of Exclusive	\$ F 7	

System Exclusive Event Lists

Event List		
Status	\$F0	
I.D.	\$43	
Sub-status	\$75	
	\$70	
(events) (events) (events)		
End of Exclusive	\$F7	
Event: Note OFF v	vith Fraction	ϵ
Status	%0000nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Note Number	%0kkkkkk	k = 0 (note C-2) ~ 127 (note G8) The actual sound range of the FB-01 is D#-1 ~ D7 (depending on transpose), but the FB-01 will automatically adjust.
Key Fraction	%Offfffff	f = 100 cent range
Event: Note ON/O	FF with Fraction	
Status	%0001nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Note Number	%0kkkkkk	k = 0 (note C-2) ~ 127 (note G8) The actual sound range of the FB-01 is D#-1 ~ D7 (depending on transpose), but the FB-01 will automatically adjust.
Key Fraction	%Offfffff	f = 100 cent range
Key Velocity	%0vvvvvv	v = 0 means note OFF
		$v = 1 \sim 127$ means note ON with the velocity of v
Event: Note ON/OF	FF with Fraction and	Duration
Status	%0010nnnn	n = MIDI channel number
Note Number	%0kkkkkk	k = 0 (note C-2) ~ 127 (note G8) The actual sound range of the FB-01 is D#-1 ~ D7 (depending on transpose), but the FB-01 will automatically adjust.
Key Fraction	%Offfffff	f = 100 cent range
Key Velocity	%0vvvvvv	v = 0 means note OFF
<u> </u>		$v = 1 \sim 127$ means note ON with the velocity of v
Duration Low	%Ογγγγγγγ	

50

	Bel C. de Carles en ante de Carles anno 1999		
Duration High	%0xxxxxx	x+y = duration	
Event: Control Cha	ange		
Status	%0011nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Control No.	%Occcccc	c = control number	
Control Value	%0~~~~~	v = control value	
Event: Program Cł	nange		
Status	%0100nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Program Number	%Оррррррр	p = program number	
Event: After Touch	1		
Status	%0101nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Pressure	%0vvvvvv	v = pressure (PMD must be set to TOUCH)	
Event: Pitch Bend			
Status	%0110nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Value (LSB)	%Ογγγγγγγ		
Value (MSB)	%0xxxxxx	x, y = pitch bend amount	
Event: Parameter (Change (Instrument)	Single Byte	
Status	%0111nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Param. Change	%00рррррр	p = single byte parameter change (see p.47)	
Value	%0dddddd	d = parameter change data	
Event: Parameter C	Change (Instrument)	Double Byte	
Status	%0111nnnn	n = MIDI channel number	
Param. Change	%00рррррр	p = double byte parameter change (see p.48)	
Value Low	%0000уууу		
Value High	%0000xxxx	$x \times 16 + y =$ parameter change data	
System Exclusiv	e Data Format Ta	bles	
Co- C			
Somiguration Data	Format \$00 ~ \$9F		

-. • .

\$00 ~ \$07		ASCII name
\$08	%000000x	voice function combine mode (1=ON)

\$09 \$0A	%0xxxxxx %0xxxxxx	LFO speed (1 ~ 127) amd (1 ~ 127)
\$0B	%0xxxxxx	pmd (1 ~ 127)
\$0 C	%000000xx	LFO waveform (0 \sim 3)
\$0D	%000000xx	KC# reception mode (0=all, 1=even, 2=odd)
\$0E ~ \$1F		reserved
\$20 ~ \$2F		instrument #0 definition block
\$30 ~ \$3F		instrument #1 definition block
\$40 ~ \$4F		instrument #2 definition block
\$50 ~ \$5F		instrument #3 definition block
\$60 ~ \$6F		instrument #4 definition block
\$70 ~ \$7F		instrument #5 definition block
\$80 ~ \$8F		instrument #6 definition block
\$90 ~ \$9F		instrument #7 definition block

 \mathbf{C}_{i}

ĺ

Instrument Definition Block \$00 ~ \$0F

\$00	%0000xxxx	# of notes (0 ~ 8)
\$01	%0000xxxx	midi channel (0 \sim 15)
\$02	%0xxxxxx	KC# limit/H (0 ~ 127)
\$03	%0xxxxxx	KC# limit/L (0 ~ 127)
\$04	%00000xxx	voice bank $\# (0 \sim 6)$
\$05	%0xxxxxx	voice # $(0 ~ 47)$
\$06	%0xxxxxx	detune $(0 ~ 127)$
\$07	%00000xxx	octave transpose $(0 \sim 4)$
		0 = -2 octaves, $4 = +2$ octaves
\$08	%0xxxxxx	output level (0 \sim 127)
\$09	%0xxxxxx	pan (0 ~ 127)
		0 = left, 64 = left + right, 127 = right
\$0A	%000000x	LFO enable (0, 1)
		0 = pms and ams are disabled
		1 = use pms and ams from voice data
\$0B	%0xxxxxx	portamento time $(0 \sim 127)$
\$0C	%0000xxxx	pitchbender range $(0 \sim 12)$
\$0D	%000000x	mono/poly mode (0, 1)
		0=poly, 1=mono
\$0E	%00000×××	input controller assignment to pmd ($0 \sim 4$)
		0=not assigned
		1=after touch
		2=modulation wheel
		3=breath controller
		4=foot controller
\$0F		reserved

the second

100

State of the

2

Voice Data Format \$000 \sim \$C1F

\$000 ~ \$007	name
\$008 ~ \$01F	reserved
\$020 ~ \$05F	voice #0 data
\$060 ~ \$09F	voice #1 data
•••	

. . . Ś \$

. . .

•••

45.5

14

. .

	•••	
\$BAO ~ \$BDF	voice #46	data
\$BE0 ~ \$C1F	voice #47	

-

Voice Data Format \$00 ~ \$3F

\$00 ~ \$06		name
\$07	%xxxxxxxx	user's code (any number)
\$08	%xxxxxxxx	LFO speed
\$09	%xyyyyyyy	x=enable to load Ifo data
		y=amd
\$0A	%×γγγγγγγ	x=sync lfo (at note on) mode
***		y=pmd
\$0B	% 0 wxyz000	w≕enable operator #3
		x=enable operator #2
		y=enable operator #1
		z=enable operator #0
\$0C	%00xxxyyy	x=feedback level
		y=algorithm
\$0D	%0xxx00yy	x=pms
***		y=ams
\$0E	%0xx00000	x=LFO wave form
\$0F	%xxxxxxx	x=transpose
61.0 64.7		2's complement, 100 cents resolution
\$10 ~ \$17		operator#0 block
\$18 ~ \$1F		operator#1 block
\$20 ~ \$27		operator#2 block
\$28 ~ \$2F		operator#3 block
\$30 ~ \$39		reserved
\$3A	% ϫ ϥϥϥϥ	x=voice function, poly/mono mode
60 D		y=voice function, portamento time
\$3B	%0xxxyyyy	x=voice function, input controller assignment to PMD
\$3C ~ \$3F		y=voice function, pitchbender range
1-20 ~ 23F		reserved

Operator Block

%0xxxxxx	TL
%xyyy0000	x=keyboard level scaling type (bit#0) y=velocity sensitivity (TL)
%xxxxyyyy	x=keyboard level scaling depth
%xyyyzzzz	y=adjust for TL x=keyboard level scaling type (bit#1 of 2 bit type indicator,
	see byte \$01)
	y=DT1
%xx0yyyyy	z=multiple x=keyboard rate scaling depth
0/	y=AR
%xyyzzzz	x= 0=modulator, disable/AM 1=carrier, enable/AM
	% xyyy0000 % xxxxyyyy % xyyyzzzz

		y= velocity sensitivity (AR) z=D1R
\$06	%××0yyyyy	x=DT2
		y=D2R
\$07	%xxxxyyyy	x=SL
		v=RR

Other MIDI Codes

These MIDI bytes are single byte messages that the FB-01 recognizes.

MIDI	Real	Time	Clock
------	------	------	-------

Status	\$F8	clock is used for counting the duration while processing system exclusive event lists
Start		Q
Status	\$FA	MIDI start (for display indicator)
Continue		
Status	\$FC	MIDI continue (for display indicator)
Stop		
Status	\$FB	MIDI stop (for display indicator)
Active Sensing		
Status	\$FE	When this code is received, sensing begins. If neither status nor data is received over an interval of 300 milliseconds, the () FB-01 will stop audio output and clear the key assigner.

MIDI Data Transmitted (MIDI OUT) ____

System Exclusive MIDI Codes

There are two main types of system exclusives that the FB-01 will transmit: data dumps and handshake data.

Transmitted Dumps

1.1.1

There are seven dumps that the FB-01 sends out: voice bank 0, voice bank x, current configuration buffer, configuration memory xx, all configuration memory, identification number, and instrument i voice data. Voice data must be sent to two byte pairs since the high bit is set on certain data bytes. Configuration data must be sent as single bytes since the high bit is never set in its data format. The format is as follows:

h = byte count high	(number of bytes in packet)
I = byte count low	
y = byte data low	(byte #1)
x = byte data high	
	(byte #2)
	(byte #x)
e = check sum (2's cor	
h = byte count high	(number of bytes in packet)
	(number of syles in pucket)
	(byte #1)
_	(byte #2)
x byte data high	(byte #x)
e = check sum (2's cor	
h - huto anunt bist	
n – byte count nigh	(number of bytes in packet)
	y = byte data low x = byte data high y = byte data low x = byte data high

Ĵ.

%0111111 I = byte count low %0dddddd d = data byte (byte #1) %0dddddd d = data byte (byte #2) ... (byte #x) %0eeeeee e = check sum (2's complement of sum of the data bytes) \$F7 configuration memory xx (xx = 0 \sim 19) \$F0 \$43 \$75 \$0s \$00 \$02 \$xx (1 packet) %000000h h = byte count high(number of bytes in packet) %0111111 I = byte count low %0dddddd d = data byte (byte #1) %0dddddd d = data byte (byte #2) ... (byte #x) %0eeeeee e = check sum (2's complement of sum of the data bytes) \$F7 all configuration memory \$F0 \$43 \$75 \$0s \$00 \$03 \$00 (16 packets) %000000h h = byte count high (number of bytes in packet) %0111111 I = byte count low %0dddddd d = data byte (byte #1) %0dddddd d = data byte(byte #2) ... (byte #x) %Oeeeeee e = check sum (2's complement of sum of the data bytes) \$F7 identification number \$F0 \$43 \$75

\$0s

\$00	-	
\$04		
\$00		,
(1 packet)		
%0000000h	h = byte count high	(number of bytes in packet)
%0	I = byte count low	
%0dddddd	d = data byte	(byte #1)
%0dddddd	d = data byte	(byte #2)
	- /	(byte #x)
%Oeeeeee	e = check sum (2's cor	nplement of sum of the data bytes)
\$F7	,	
ent i voice data		
\$F0		
\$F0 \$43		
\$43 \$75		
\$75 \$0s		
≈us %00001iii		
\$00 \$00		
\$00 \$00		
(1 packet)		
%0000000h	h = byte count high	(number of bytes in packet)
%0111111	I = byte count low	,
%0000уууу	y = byte data low	(byte #1)
%0000xxxx	x = byte data high	
%0000уууу	y = byte data low	(byte #2)
%0000xxxx	x = byte data high	
	_	(byte #x)
%Oeeeeee	e = check sum (2's con	
	-	

The state of the second sec

ANT MARCHAN

Handshake MIDI Codes

There are three handshake messages that the FB-01 may transmit: ACK, NAK, and cancel. ACK indicates success. NAK indicates a check sum error, a data short error, a framing error, or an overrun error. Cancel indicates a memory protection error, and invalid number error (out of range or ROM area for save).

\$F0 \$43 \$6s \$0x \$F7

x = \$02	indicates	ACK
x = \$03	indicates	NAK
x = \$04	indicates	cancel

Function	Transmitted	Recognized	Remarks
Basic Default Channel Changed	x x	1-16 1-16	+ memorized
Mode Default Messages Altered	X ******	3,4 MONO(M=1),POLY 3,4	+ memorized
Note Number : True voice	 X ******************************	$\begin{array}{c} 0 - 127 \\ 0 - 127 \end{array}$	+
Velocity Note ON Note OFF	x x	o v=1-127	+
After Key's Touch Ch's	x x	x 0	+ PMD
Pitch Bender	×	+	+
Control Change	x	o (1) o (2) o (4) o (5) o (7) o (10) o (64) o (65) o (66)	PMD PMD portamento time volume PAN(L,L+R,R) sustain partamento sostenuto
Prog Change : True #	× ************************************	o 0-47	
System Exclusive	0		advanced message
System : Song pos : Song sel Common : Tune	x x x x	x x x	+
System :Clock Real Time :Commands	x x	0 0	+
Aux :Local ON/OFF :All Notes CFF Mes- :Active Sense sages:Reset	х	x 123,126(M=1),127 o x	•
votes	FB-01 has 8 i	+	+

ĩ

€

List of Figures

SECTION 1: SETTING UP THE FB-01

-

1
2
2
3
3
4

SECTION 3: OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS

Figure 7:	Definition of Terms	8
Figure 8:	Front Panel Key Chart w/FB-01 Front Panel	9
Figure 9:	Voice Select Key View	10
Figure 10:	Voice Function Key View	12
Figure 11:	PMD Devices	14
Figure 12:	Inst Assign and Inst Select Key View	15
Figure 13:	MIDI Note Ranges	18
Figure 14:	Instrument Function Key View	19
Figure 15:	System Set Up Key View	22
Figure 16:	Memory Protection	23
Figure 17:	System Channel Number	25

SECTION 5: SAMPLE APPLICATIONS

Figure 18:	Configuration Memory Number 17	30
Figure 19:	Configuration Memory Number 18	31
Figure 20:	Configuration Memory Number 19	32
Figure 21:	Configuration Memory Number 20	33
Figure 22:	KX88 Controller with an FB-01	34
Figure 23:	KX88 Controller with an FB-01 and a QX21 Sequencer	35
Figure 24:	FB-01 with a CX5M and MIDI Recorder with any MIDI Keyboard	36
Figure 25:	FB-01 with a DX100/DX27/DX21	37
Figure 26:	FB-01 with a DX100 and a QX21 Sequencer	38
Figure 27:	Two FB-01s with a KX5 remote Controller and a QX21 Sequencer	39
Figure 28:	FB-01 with a KX76 and a QX1 Sequencer	40
Figure 29:	FB-01 with a Clavinova or PSR-70	41
Figure 30:	FB-01 with any MIDI Keyboard	42

Index

AC Power Requirements		1		
Active Sensing		54		
Aftertouch		14		
Audio Connections		2		
Bank		8		
Bank Selection		6		
Breath Controller		14		
Bulk Data dump devices		28		
Bulk Data dumps		25		
Combine Mode		23		
Configuration		8		
Configuration Data Format	51,	52		
Configuration Memory Select		5		
Configuration Number 17 (single)				
Configuration Number 18 (mono 8)				
Configuration Number 19 (dual)				
Configuration Number 20 (split)				
Continue				
Data Entry/Modify Keys				
Data Format, Configuration Data				
Data Format, Instrument Definition Block				
Data Format, Operator Block				
Data Format, Voice Data				
Detuning an Instrument				
Dump Requests				
Dumps Recognized				
Event Lists				
Factory Voices				
FB-01 Rear Panel View				
Fingered Portamento				
Foot Controller				
Front Panel Display				
Front Panel Keys				
Global Menu Keys				
Handshake MIDI Codes				
Hardware Specifications				
High Note Limit				
Inst Assign Key				
Inst Function Key				
Inst Select Key				
Instrument				
Instrument Definition Block Data format				
Instrument Detuning 20				
Instrument Menu Keys				
Keycode Number Receive Mode				
KX88 Controller w/FB-01				
KX88 Controller w/FB-01 and QX21		35		
LFO		21		

LFO ON/OFF Toggle	. 21
LFO Rate and Waveform	. 21
List of Factory Supplied Voices	7
Low Note Limit 17	, 18
Memory Battery Switch	4
Memory Protection	
MIDI Channel Set up	. 16
MIDI Channel Basics	
MIDI Codes Recognized	
MIDI Codes, Handshake	
MIDI Connections	
MIDI Data, Transmitted	
MIDI Operations	
MIDI Zone	
Modulation Wheel	
MONO mode	
Note Limit – High	
Note Limit – Low	
Note Off	
Note On	
Number of Notes Allocation	
Octave Transposition 19	
Operator Block Data Format	
Output Level	
Panning, Stereo 20	
Parameter Change by MIDI Channel	. 48
Parameter Change by MIDI Channel	
(System)	. 49
Parameter Change by MIDI Channel	
(Voice)	. 48
Parameter Change by MIDI Chnl	6
+ Inst Number	. 48
Parameter Change by MIDI Chnl	
+ Inst Number (Voice)	. 48
Parameter Changes	. 47
Parameter Table	
Pitch Bender Range	. 13
Pitch Modulation Device 14	, 15
PMD	, 15
POLY mode	, 14
Portamento Time	
Portamento, Fingered	
Power On Procedure	
Rack Mounting	
RAM Voice Numbers	
RAM Voices	
Real Time Clock	
Saving a Configuration	

Saving a Voice 10, 11		
Specifications 43 ~ 57		
Specifications, hardware 43		
Standard MIDI Codes 45, 46		
Start 54		
Stereo Panning 20, 21		
Stop 54		
Storing a Configuration 24		
Storing a Voice 10, 11		
Sys Ex Event After Touch 51		
Sys Ex Event Control Change 51		
Sys Ex Event Note OFF w/Fraction 50		
Sys Ex Event Note ON/OFF w/Fraction 50		
Sys Ex Event Note ON/OFF w/Fraction		
and Duration 50		
Sys Ex Event Parameter Change 51		
Sys Ex Event Pitch Bend 51		
Sys Ex Event Program Change 51		

System Channel Number	
System Exclusive Event Lists	
System Exclusive MIDI Codes	
System Set Up Key	
Terms and Conventions Used	
Transmitted MIDI Bulk Dumps	54 ~ 57
Transposition, by octave	
Tuning	24, 25
Voice	
Voice Bank Selection	6
Voice Data Format	52, 53
Voice Function Key	12 ~ 15
Voice Memory Select	6, 10
Voice Menu Keys	
Voice Select Key	10 ~ 12
Voice Storing	10, 11
Voicing the FB-01	

SPECIAL MESSAGE SECTION

ELECTROMAGNETIC INTERFERENCE (RFI): Your Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument Product has been type tested and found to comply with all applicable regulations. However, if it is installed in the immediate proximity of other electronic devices, some form of interference may occur. For additional RFI information see FCC information section located in this manual.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This product has been tested and approved by independent safety testing laboratories in order that you may be sure that when it is properly installed and used in its normal and customary manner, all foreseeable risks have been eliminated. DO NOT modify this unit or commission others to do so unless specifically authorized by Yamaha. Product performance and/or safety standards may be diminished. Claims filed under the expressed warranty may be denied if the unit is/has been modified. Implied warranties may also be affected.

SPECIFICATIONS SUBJECT TO CHANGE: The information contained in this manual is believed to be correct at the time of printing. Yamaha reserves the right to change or modify specifications at any time without notice or obligation to update existing units. NOTICE: Service charges incurred due to a lack of knowledge relating to how a function or effect works (when the unit is operating as designed), are not covered by the manufacturer's warranty. Please study this manual carefully before requesting service.

STATIC ELECTRICITY CAUTION: Some Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products have modules that plug into the unit to perform various functions. The contents of a plug-in module can be altered/damaged by static electricity discharges. Static electricity build-ups are more likely to occur during cold winter months (or in areas with very dry climates) when the natural humidity is low. To avoid possible damage to the plug-in module, touch any metal object (a metal desk lamp, a door knob, etc.) before handling the module. If static electricity is a problem in your area, you may want to have your carpet treated with a substance that reduces static electricity build-up. See your local carpet retailer for professional advice that relates to your specific situation.

Model	
Serial No.	<u> </u>
Purchase Date	·····

This information on safety is provided to comply with U.S.A. laws, but should be observed by users in all countries.

IMPORTANT SAFETY AND INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS

INFORMATION RELATING TO POSSIBLE PERSONAL INJURY, ELECTRIC SHOCK AND FIRE HAZARD POSSIBILITIES HAS BEEN INCLUDED IN THIS LIST.

WARNING — When using electronic products, basic precautions should always be followed, including the following:

- Read all Safety and Installation Instructions, Supplemental Marking and Special Message Section data, and any applicable assembly instructions BEFORE using this product.
- 2. Check unit weight specifications BEFORE you attempt to move this product.
- 3. Main power supply verification. Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products are manufactured specifically for use with the main supply voltage used in the area where they are to be sold. The main supply voltage required by these products is printed on the name plate. For name plate location please refer to the graphic in the Special Message section. If any doubt exists please contact the nearest Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument retailer.
- 4. Some Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products utilize external power supplies or adapters. Do NOT connect products of this type to any power supply or adapter other than the type described in the owners manual or as marked on the unit.
- 5. This product may be equipped with a plug having three prongs or a polarized line plug (one blade wider than the other). If you are unable to insert the plug into the outlet, contact an electrician to have the obsolete outlet replaced. Do NOT defeat the safety purpose of the plug. Yamaha products not having three prong or polarized line plugs incorporate construction methods and designs that do not require line plug polarization.
- 6. WARNING Do NOT place objects on the power cord or place the unit in a position where any one could walk on, trip over, or roll anything over cords of any kind. An improper installation of this type can create the possibility of a fire hazard and/or personal injury.
- Environment: Your Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument should be installed away from heat sources such as heat registers and/or other products that produce heat.
- 8. Ventilation: This product should be installed or positioned in a way that its placement or location does not interfere with proper ventilation.
- Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products are frequently incorporated into "Systems" which are assembled on carts, stands or in racks. Utilize only those carts, stands, or racks that have been designed for this

purpose and observe all safety precautions supplied with the products. Pay special attention to cautions that relate to proper assembly, heavier units being mounted at the lower levels, load limits, moving instructions, maximum usable height and ventilation.

- 10. Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products, either alone or in combination with amplification, headphones, or speakers, may be capable of producing sound levels that could cause permanent hearing loss. Do NOT operate at high volume levels or at a level that is uncomfortable. If you experience any discomfort, ringing in the ears, or suspect any hearing loss, you should consult an audiologist.
- Do NOT use this product near water or in wet environments. For example, near a swimming pool, spa, in the rain, or in a wet basement.
- 12. Care should be taken so that objects do not fall, and liquids are not spilled into the enclosure.
- 13. Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument products should be serviced by a qualified service person when:
 - a. The power supply/power adapter cord or plug has been damaged; or
 - b. Objects have fallen, or liquid has been spilled into the products; or
 - c. The unit has been exposed to rain; or
 - d. The product does not operate, exhibits a marked change in performance; or
 - e. The product has been dropped, or the enclosure of the product has been damaged.
- 14. When not in use, always turn your Yamaha Digital Musical Instrument equipment "OFF". The power supply cord should be unplugged from the outlet when the equipment is to be left unused for a long period of time. NOTE: In this case, some units may lose some user programmed data. Factory programmed memories will not be affected.
- Electromagnetic Interference (RFI). Yamaha Digital Musical Instruments utilize digital (high frequency pulse) technology that may adversely affect Radio/TV reception. Please read FCC Information (inside front cover) for additional information.
- 16. Do NOT attempt to service this product beyond that described in the user maintenance section of the owners manual. All other servicing should be referred to qualified service personnel.

PLEASE KEEP THIS MANUAL FOR FUTURE REFERENCE!

This information on safety is provided to comply with U.S.A. laws, but should be observed by users in all countries.

YAMAHA CORPORATION P.O.Box 1, Hamamatsu, Japan OMD-195M-1 88 04 2.2 R2 CR Printed

- 34.5

a state a state of the second state of the sec

-

YAMAHA